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CHARACTERISTICS OF THE GROWTH ENTERPRISES MARKET (“GEM")
OF THE STOCK EXCHANGE OF HONG KONG LIMITED (THE "STOCK
EXCHANGE")

GEM has been established as a market designed to accommodate
companies to which a high investment risk may be attached. In
particular, companies may list on GEM with neither a track record of
profitability nor any obligation to forecast future profitability.
Furthermore, there may be risks arising out of the emerging nature
of companies listed on GEM and the business sectors or countries in
which the companies operate. Prospective investors should be aware
of the potential risks of investing in such companies and should make
the decision to invest only after due and careful consideration. The
greater risk profile and other characteristic of GEM mean that it is a
market more suited to professional and other sophisticated investors.

Given the emerging nature of companies listed on GEM, there is a
risk that securities traded on GEM may be more susceptible to high
market volatility than securities traded on the Main Board and no
assurance is given that there will be a liquid market in the securities
traded on GEM. The principal means of information dissemination on
GEM is publication on the Internet website operated by the Stock
Exchange. Listed companies are not generally required to issue paid
announcements in gazette newspapers. Accordingly, prospective
investors should note that they need to have access to the GEM
website in order to obtain up-to-date information on GEM-listed
issuers.

The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited takes no responsibility for the
contents of this report, makes no representation as to its accuracy or
completeness and expressly disclaims any liability whatsoever for any loss
howsoever arising from or in reliance upon the whole or any part of the
contents of this report.

This report, for which the directors (the “Directors”) of New Chinese Medicine
Holdings Limited collectively and individually accept full responsibility, includes
particulars given in compliance with the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities on the Growth Enterprise Market of The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited for the purpose of giving information with regard to New
Chinese Medicine Holdings Limited. The directors, having made all reasonable
enquiries, confirm that, to the best of their knowledge and belief: (1) the
information contained in this report is accurate and complete in all material
respects and not misleading, (2) there are no other matters the omission of
which would make any statement in this report misleading, and (3) all
opinions expressed in this report have been arrived at after due and careful
consideration and are founded on bases and assumptions that are fair and
reasonable.
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On behalf of the board of Directors, | am pleased to present
the annual results of New Chinese Medicine Holdings Limited (“the
Company”) and its subsidiaries (the “Group”) for the year ended 31
March, 2005.

The Group had taken its time to review on business strategies
and managed to ride on the increase in PRC visitors to Hong Kong
for the benefits of its retail outlet. The business activities started to
revive in the second half of the financial year under review. The
Group continued to maintain tight control over its management
expenses throughout the year.

| would like to report that subject to shareholders approval at
an extraordinary general meeting to be convened in July, 2005, the
Group may probably have a change in the controlling shareholder
and management. This is an important step for the Group in its
corporate development process.

Looking ahead, in view of the gradual economic recovery in the
regions of Hong Kong, Japan and the PRC, and the possible change
in management, the Group anticipates growth in its existing
businesses and development of similar businesses.

APPRECIATION

On behalf of the board of Directors, | would like to take this
opportunity to express our sincere appreciation to all our clients,
investors, business partners and staff for their continued support
and confidence. We shall continue to explore on ways to improve
on the business results and investment returns of the Group in the
year ahead.

Wong Cheah Foo
Chairman

Hong Kong, 30 June, 2005
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BUSINESS REVIEW AND OUTLOOK
Retail business

The Group’s core business in tourist trade revived in the second
half of the financial year to 31 March, 2005. The volume of business
in the retail outlet benefited from the increase in PRC visitors. The
diversity in merchandise selection proved to be successful in
sustaining market share and business activities while the Group was
reviewing its strategic business direction.

In view of the gradual economic recovery in the regions of
Hong Kong, Japan and the PRC, it is anticipated that the growth in
the number of visitors will continue and their spending is likely to
increase.

Distributorship

The Group continued to explore on overseas distributors for its
key products and third party licensed products in the past year. The
development was considered satisfactory and more effort will be
made towards expansion of distribution network with a view to
strengthening the Group’s position in the Asia Pacific region.

Prospects

The Group will continue to review the retail outlet operation
and its product distribution in terms of market sector and product
range.

As disclosed in the circular dated 20 June, 2005 to shareholders,
subject to shareholders approval at an extraordinary general meeting
to be convened in July 2005, the Group may probably have a change
in the controlling shareholder and management. This will provide
the Group with additional financial and management resources to
pursue its existing businesses and to explore potential investment in
similar business. The Group will also consider other strategic
development plans to extend its core businesses.

FINANCIAL REVIEW

For the year ended 31 March, 2005, the Group recorded a
turnover of approximately HK$8,011,000 (2004: approximately
HK$637,000) and a net loss attributable to the shareholders of
approximately HK$3,421,000 (2004: approximately HK$23,887,000).

There was a gross loss in the retail business, after deducting
the cost of goods and direct marketing expenses, at around
HK$180,000. The retail price structure was revised to suit the
extended market sector. The direct marketing cost was higher than
expected as well.

The net loss attributable to shareholders for the year ended 31
March 2005 was lower than last year because of the Group’s efforts
in controlling administration cost. There were also one-off provisions
and impairment in value of intangible assets in last year's accounts
which were of a non-recurring nature.
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LIQUIDITY, FINANCIAL RESOURCES AND CAPITAL
RESOURCES

As at 31 March, 2005, the Group had cash and bank balances
of approximately HK$216,000 (2004: approximately HK215,000).

The Group obtained a long-term loan of up to HK$10,000,000
on 5 March, 2004 to satisfy the working capital requirements of the
Group. The loan was replaced by another long-term loan of up to
HK$15,000,000 on 17 January, 2005. Repayment is due after one
year and interest on outstanding amount is 5.25% per annum.
Besides the above and except for short-term bank overdraft, the
Group did not have any bank borrowing as at 31 March, 2005.

The Group recorded total current assets of approximately HK$1.5
million as at 31 March 2005 (2004: HK$2.2 million) and total current
liabilities of approximately HK$ 6.7 million as at 31 March 2005
(2004: HK$9.8 million). The current ratio of the Group, calculated
by dividing the current assets by the current liabilities, was
approximately 0.22 as at 31 March 2005 (2004: 0.22).

The Group recorded an increase in net liabilities in shareholders’
funds of approximately HK$3.5 million which was mainly attributable
to the net loss from operation in the year to 31 March, 2005.

FOREIGN CURRENCY RISK

The Group has foreign currency risk as a significant portion of
the Group's turnover is denominated in the foreign currencies.
Fluctuation of the exchange rates of Hong Kong dollars against the
foreign currencies could affect the Group’s result of operations.

The Group closely monitors its foreign currency exposure by
converting the foreign currencies received from the customers as
soon as practicable and does not hold position on any of the foreign
currencies.

CHARGES ON GROUP ASSETS
As at 31 March, 2005, none of the Group’s assets was pledged
as security for liabilities (2004: Nil).

MATERIAL ACQUISITIONS AND DISPOSALS OF
SUBSIDIARIES AND AFFILIATED COMPANIES

During the year, the Group did not have any material acquisitions
or disposal of subsidiaries and affiliated companies.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES
As at 31 March, 2005, the Group had no contingent liabilities
(2004: Nil).

EMPLOYEES AND REMUNERATION POLICIES

As at 31 March, 2005, the Group employed a total of 5 full-
time staff (2004: 8). Remuneration is determined by reference to
market terms, the performance, qualifications and experience of
each individual employee. Discretionary bonus based on individual
performance and profit of the Group will be paid to employees as
recognition of and reward for their contributions. Other benefits
include Share Option Scheme for eligible employees. Some directors
waived their remuneration for the year to 31 March 2005.
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DIRECTORS
Executive Directors

Mr. Wong Cheah Foo, aged 56, is the chairman of the Group.
Mr. Wong is responsible for overseeing the formulation of corporate
strategy of the Group. Mr. Wong joined the Group in October,
1994. Mr. Wong is a fellow member of the Association of Chartered
Certified Accountants and has over 10 years of management
experience.

Mr. Kam Yiu Ming, Wilfred aged 44, is the Chief Executive
Officer of the Group. Mr. Kam is responsible for the overall
management and business operation of the group. Mr. Kam joined
the Group in March, 2004. Mr. Kam is an associate member of the
Institute of Chartered Accountants England and Wales and the Hong
Kong Society of Accountants. He has over 20 years of business and
professional management experiences in Hong Kong and aboard.

Ms. Leung Oi Wah, aged 38, is the vice chairlady and founder
of the Group. Ms. Leung is responsible for the Group’s strategic
planning, retail operations and e-customer referral programme. Ms.
Leung has over 10 years of experience in the tourist-retailing business
and is a pioneer in introducing modernised Chinese medicine into
Japanese tourist industry in Hong Kong.

Mr. Gao Junging, aged 74, is the co-director of research and
development and is responsible for overseeing the Group’s research
and development, in particular regarding the proprietary Chinese
medicine and health supplement products. Prior to joining the Group
in October, 2000, Mr. Gao had been supportive to the Group through
the collaboration between the Company and SRI. Mr. Gao is also
the director of the SRI and a committee member of a number of
research institutes of Chinese medicine in the PRC. In addition, Mr.
Gao has undertaken teaching and senior management roles in various
universities such as the West China University of Medical Sciences
in the PRC for over 40 years.

Professor Lin Daquan, aged 64, is the co-director of research
and development, in particular regarding bio-technology related
subject. Professor Lin has been a professor of biomedical engineering
at Chengdu University of Science and Technology since 1992 and
the vice director of the SRI. Professor Lin graduated from the Sichuan
University, majored in bio-physics. He is the president of the Sichuan
University's research centre for human engineering and medical
equipment. Professor Lin joined the Group in October, 2000.
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Professor Lin has participated in extensive researches in
anthropomorphic radiological phantom, bio-physical functional
materials and synthesis of artificial radiological equivalent materials.
In recognition of his fine work in the field of bio-physics, Professor
Lin has been awarded the National Invention Award of China and
the Scientific and Technological Award of the Ministry of Public
Health of China. He is also listed in the “Five Hundred Leaders of
Influence” published by the American Biographical Institute.

Independent non-executive Directors

Mr. Chu Kar Wing, aged 48, was appointed as independent
non-executive director on 6 October, 2004. Mr. Chu graduated from
the Chinese University of Hong Kong with a degree in Social Science
in 1979. He has over 20 years of experience in the banking industry
and commerce.

Mr. Loke Yu (alias Loke Hoi Lam), aged 55, was appointed
to the board as an independent non-executive director and chairman
of the audit committee of the Company on 6 October, 2004. Mr.
Loke has over 30 years of experience in accounting and auditing for
private and public companies, consultancy and corporate
management. Mr. Loke holds a MBA degree from Universiti Teknologi
Malaysia. He is a Fellow of The Institute of Chartered Accountants
in England and Wales; Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants; and the Hong Kong Institute of Directors. He is also
an Associate member of the Institute of Chartered Secretaries &
Administrators and a member of the Malaysian Institute of
Accountants. He is the Chairman of MHL Consultanting Limited
(formerly known as Master Holdings (HK) Ltd). He also serves as an
independent non-executive director of Shandong Molong Petroleum
Machinery Company Limited, United Metals Holdings Limited and
Matrix Holdings Limited companies listed on the Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”).

Mr. Junya Kabeya, aged 68, graduated with a degree in
political science from the Waseda University in 1959 and is currently
the managing director of two trading companies after his retirement
from the Japan based international airline group of companies in
1999.
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The directors present their annual report and the audited
financial statements for the year ended 31 March, 2005.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company is an investment holding company with its Shares
Listed on the Growth Enterprise Market (“GEM") of the Stock
Exchange Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”). The activities
of its principal subsidiaries are set out in note 29 to the financial
statements.

RESULTS
The results of the Group for the year ended 31 March, 2005
are set out in the consolidated income statement on page 17.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of movements in the property, plant and equipment of
the Group during the year are set out in note 13 to the financial
statements.

DIRECTORS
The directors of the Company during the year and up to the
date of this report were:

Executive directors:

Mr. Wong Cheah Foo (Chairman)
Ms. Leung Oi Wah (Vice-Chairlady)
Mr. Kam Yiu Ming Wilfred

Mr. Gao Junging

Professor Lin Daquan

Independent non-executive directors:
Mr. Junya Kabeya
Mr. Tsoi Chi Yin
(resigned on 16 October, 2004)
Mr. Chu Kar Wing
(appointed on 6 October, 2004)
Mr. Loke Yu (alias Loke Hoi Lam)
(appointed on 6 October, 2004)

In accordance with the provisions of the Company’s Articles of
Association, Messrs. Chu Kar Wing and Loke Yu (alias Loke Hoi
Lam) will retire at the forthcoming annual general meeting and,
being eligible, offer themselves for re-election.
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DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

Each of the executive directors except Mr. Kam Yiu Ming Wilfred
has entered into a service agreement with the Company for an
initial term of three years commencing from 1 February, 2002, which
will continue thereafter until terminated by either party giving to
the other not less than three months prior written notice.

Mr. Jun Ya Kabeya's term of office expired on 31 December,
2003 and was renewed for two years to 31 December, 2005.

Mr. Chu Kar Wing and Mr. Loke Yu (alias Loke Hoi Lam) are not
appointed for specific terms.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS OF SIGNIFICANCE

Save as disclosed in the “Directors’ service contracts” and the
continuing connected transactions, no contracts of significance to
which the Company or any of its subsidiaries was a party and in
which a director of the Company had a material interest, whether
directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year or at any time
during the year.

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES' INTERESTS IN
SECURITIES

As at 31 March, 2005, the interests of the directors and chief
executive and their respective associates in the share capital of the
Company and its associated corporations as recorded in the register
required to be maintained by the Company pursuant to Section 29
of the Securities (Disclosure of interests) Ordinance (the “SDI
Ordinance”) were as follows:

Director Type of interest

= 1 55 85l

Ms. Leung Oi Wah Corporate (note 1)

REHLT D% (W)
Mr. Gao Junging Other (note 2)
=EExRE Htn (HaE2)
Professor Lin Daquan Other (note 2)
MR 2R Hpth (Kf7t2)

New CHINESE MEDICINE HOLDINGS LIMITED %7 8 % 2= |k & R 2 A
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ERABHLEEZAHER_TZT=F+_A
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ABRRAERESMAECRELEETEML
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EERERGHZER

BRIEENESF 2B RSEREZX S
REEN AT SEEAME LR RAGES R
VHEARAEFARTEERIBERBEAE
@ ANAFRZRERDRERIAF R
BRZEREH -

EERTRARREZ 2ER

R-BPEF=A=T-0  BREESES
(B2 W) (TR BB FE01)) B290 2 T
MARAFEZEEMARE  ARTEEER
ARERREEIBEALREZARARAY
EREZBAEENT

Interest in
the Company'’s Number of
share capital Shares
RARARRAEER R4 & E
%
42.82% 200,800,641
0.342% 1,600,000
0.342% 1,600,000
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Notes:

1. These shares are registered in the name of Great Fair Limited
("Great Fair”) and Wealth Way Limited (“Wealth Way"). Great
Fair and Wealth Way are wholly owned by Ms. Leung Oi Wah
("Ms. Leung”).

2. These shares are registered in the name of Sichuan Research
Institute of New Medicine (“SRI"). Mr. Gao Junging and Prof. Lin
Daquan each owning 5% interest in SRI.

Save as disclosed above, none of the directors or chief executive
nor their associates had any interests in any securities of the
Company or any of its associated corporations.

SHARE OPTION SCHEMES

On 1 February, 2002, the Company adopted two option
schemes, namely, the “Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme” and the “Share
Option Scheme”. Particulars of the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme
and the Share Option Scheme are set out in note 23 to the financial
statements.

No options have been granted under the Pre-IPO Share Option
Scheme and the Share Option Scheme during the year.

The Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme expired on 17 February, 2005.

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES' RIGHT TO ACQUIRE
SHARES OR DEBENTURE

Save as disclosed in “Directors’ and chief executives’ interests
in securities” and “Share Option Schemes” above, at no time during
the year was the Company, or any of its subsidiaries a party to any
arrangements to enable the directors of the Company to acquire
benefits by means of the acquisition of shares in, or debt securities,
including debentures, of the Company or any other body corporate,
and none of the directors or the chief executive; or their spouses or
children under the age 18 had any right to subscribe for the securities
of the Company, or had exercised any such right.

ez RrAaR~LE New CHiNese MebiciNe HoLbings LiMITED

et

1. % EM 1D A Great Fair Limited ([ Great Fair])
K Wealth Way Limited ([Wealth Way|) % &
&2 o Great FaireWealth Wayl g i R E FE 4
T(Rut])28%% -

2. ZEBOUMIFHEERETAEHEL - B
BRERMAZHEE BB I E EHE
AR AR5 %% -

BEXAHESS  SERERTRAARE
2 EABRATHERAADNLRFARE
DE 2B SR -

i B RS E

RZBEZ-_F-_F—HB  ARAEMMIER
B HRlAIEXAFERABRES]
RIBRETE] - BB N RAERAERET
EIRBERET B S SR BRERME23 -

EFEF - ARBYEREERAFERAE
Bt 2 R B i At &) ) 4R BB AR -
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“At+tBER®-
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS

As at 31 March, 2005, the register of substantial shareholders
required to be maintained under Section 16(1) of the SDI Ordinance
showed that the following shareholders had an interest of 10% or
more of the issued share capital of the Company:

BRER

Name of shareholders

Great Fair (B i)
Wealth Way (ff&#i)

Great Fair (note i)

Wealth Way (note i)

Technique Enterprises Limited
("Technique Enterprises”) (note ii)

Notes:

i.  Great Fair and Wealth Way are wholly owned by Ms. Leung, the
Vice-chairlady and the founder of the Group.

ii.  Technique Enterprises is wholly owned by Mr. Cheung Chui who
is an independent third party.

Other than as disclosed above, the Company has not been
notified of any other interests representing 10% or more of the
Company’s issued share capital as at 31 March, 2005.

DONATIONS
The Group did not make any charitable and other donations
during the year.

CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

There was no related or connected party transaction under the
Rules governing the Listing of Securities on GEM (the “GEM Listing
Rules”) entered into by the Group during the year ended 31 March,
2005.

COMPETING INTEREST

None of the directors or the management shareholders of the
Company or their respective associates had an interest in any business
which competes or may compete with the business of the Group.

New CHINESE MEDICINE HOLDINGS LIMITED %7 8 % 2= |k & R 2 A

Technique Enterprises Limited
(ITechnique Enterprises|) (K1 ztii)

TERR

R-ZETRAF=A=1+—H RELXQAE
RAREREISE16(EMREFZZERR AT
IR ATRERFAEARAEHETRAI10%H
bz #a

Number of shares held
FrERHBEE
Approximate
percentage of

Direct interest shareholding

EEER ERBNED L
89,435,440 19.07%
111,365,201 23.75%
49,019,607 10.45%

CEX

i, Great Fair & Wealth Way?g i A £ @ &l £ & &
Bl AR LT 2BHA -

ii. Technique EnterprisesFIsR B A2 EHA -
REERBUE=% -

FBREXHEEN AEBREREASHEIM
ATR-ZZZRF=RA=+—BEALRFACH
TTIRA10% A £ 2 # 5

]
ARERAEERNYLBEELEEREMEB

AEBERNBE_TTRF=-_A=1T—HLLF
ERLETLEBEATRBERS (ERRAXE
REZ LHAR(TRIFR ETRAL) -

BEXS

ARAZEZRERERRABREZHEA
ITRERBAKEEERFHALEIRF M
AXBERHERAELD -
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MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

During the year, the five largest suppliers of the Group
accounted for approximately 60% of the Group’s total purchases
and the largest supplier of the Group accounted for approximately
20% of the Group’s total purchases.

Aggregate sales attributable to the Group’s five largest customers
were less than 7% of the Group’s sales.

None of the directors, their associates or any shareholders of
the Company (which to the knowledge of the directors own more
than 5% of the issued capital of the Company) had any interest in
Group's major suppliers for the financial year ended 31 March, 2005.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE COMPANY"’S
LISTED SECURITIES

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries purchased,
sold or redeemed any of the Company’s listed shares.

BOARD PRACTICES AND PROCEDURES

For the year ended 31 March, 2005, the Company was in
compliance with the Board Practices and Procedures as set out in
Rules 5.34 to 5.45 of the GEM Listing Rules, which applied before
the amendment of the GEM Listing Rules relating to the Code on
Corporate Governance Practices and Rules on Corporate Governance
Report on 1 January 2005. The Company will prepare a Corporate
Governance Report in accordance with Rule 18.44 of the GEM Listing
Rules for the financial year ending 31 March 2006.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

An audit committee was established on 1 February, 2002 with
written terms of reference in compliance with the relevant GEM
Listing Rules. The audit committee comprises of three independent
non-executive directors, Mr. Chu Kar Wing, Mr. Loke Yu (alias Loke
Hoi Lam) and Mr. Junya Kabeya. Mr. Loke chairs the audit committee.

During the year, the audit committee held two meetings for
the purpose of reviewing the Company’s reports and accounts, and
providing advice and recommendations to the Board of Directors.

The Board comprises of (i) five executive Directors, namely
Messrs. Wong Cheah Foo, Leung Oi Wah, Kam Yiu Ming Wilfred,
Gao Junging and Lin Daquan; and (ii) three independent non-
executive Directors, namely Messrs. Chu Kar Wing , Loke Yu (alias
Loke Hoi Lam) and Junya Kabeya.

TEEFRHUER

REAEER  AREERAHERGEARE
BEEEN60% MAKBERAHEREARE
BEEREN20%-

GEAKBEREHERSE  BRREPH
AREHERINT% -

BREFE WEZMBALRARFAEMEBER
(REEZEMA  BAEADACEITRAS%MN
LE)UERBE-_TTRF=A=T ALK
FEARLAASBEIRHEAAEFPTHEER
s o

EESBMEAQARZ LHRESF

ARFHE A E A A EEE R EA
DA LA -

EEZEeTARER
HE-_ZZRF=-A=T—RHLEFEAN " &
SE-EHBAETRIERLEMAAUR-_ZZRF
—A—BETEREMRABHARREREN
SE:IPON gmﬁiﬁWMﬂ%)%5M 5.451%
%ﬁZi%?*%&&ﬁ%ﬁm KRB BiRE
BIER EMMBE184MEREBE ST F=
A=T—BLEVBEENRRERRE -

BEREES
ARARAER-_ZET-_F-_A-HRIUEKZ
Bg U2EBMAERLETRAUMBBRET L
HEMBERE FERZEENERBE=MUBEYL
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& BREBR-

EZgRERR)ANRTES NEER
BCREFELLT  HRAKLE  SRELEERMK

ReHE  RN=UBUFATES  ARER
FE - BEEMREEREAIEDLE
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AUDITORS BB

T.K. Choi and Company and P. Tse & Company resigned as joint EEEGMEBEM LG TESMELAT
auditors of the Company on 18 April, 2005. At an extraordinary ERZZZTREFHATNAFERRAEFEZEH
general meeting held on 23 May, 2005, an ordinary resolution was g% R-TETRAFAA-T=ZBRTZIRE
passed to appoint Messrs. HLB Hodgson Impey Cheng, to fill the BRARE L —BHZERGGHIMEEMIAZ
casual vacancy. A resolution will be submitted to the annual general RERB WEBBRER - AQABRAKRRE
meeting of the Company to re-appoint Messrs. HLB Hodgson Impey FRELRE-BEAZR  ENZEEFSHE
Cheng as the auditors of the Company. EBMARRRIZEE -
On behalf of the Board EEEEH
LEUNG Ol WAH Y
VICE-CHAIRLADY REER

BB —ETRFAA

+A
Hong Kong, 30 June, 2005

New CHINESE MEDICINE HOLDINGS LIMITED %7 8 % 2= |k & R 2 A
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HLB B w6 FH
Hodgson Impey Cheng

Chartered Accountants
Certified Public Accountants

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF
NEW CHINESE MEDICINE HOLDINGS LIMITED
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

We have audited the financial statements on pages 17 to 59
which have been prepared in accordance with accounting principles
generally accepted in Hong Kong.

RESPECTIVE RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS AND
AUDITORS

The Company’s directors are responsible for the preparation of
financial statements which give a true and fair view. In preparing
financial statements which give a true and fair view, it is fundamental
that appropriate accounting policies are selected and applied
consistently.

It is our responsibility to form an independent opinion, based
on our audit, on those financial statements and to report our opinion
solely to you, as a body, and for no other purpose. We do not
assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person
for the contents of this report.

BASIS OF OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Statements of
Auditing Standards issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants. An audit includes examination, on a test basis,
of evidence relevant to the amounts and disclosures in the financial
statements. It also includes an assessment of the significant estimates
and judgements made by the directors in the preparation of the
financial statements, and of whether the accounting policies are
appropriate to the Group’s and the Company's circumstances,
consistently applied and adequately disclosed.

We planned and performed our audit so as to obtain all the
information and explanations which we considered necessary in order
to provide us with sufficient evidence to give reasonable assurance
as to whether the financial statements are free from material
misstatement. In forming our opinion we also evaluated the overall
adequacy of the presentation of information in the financial
statements. We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis
for our opinion.

BHBHEEZRERAF
ERER
(RASESITMALZBERLA)

AZEBMITETKBERIARNE17E9R LR
BEAR G RAGR M B]RE -

EERGEMBECEE

ERAZEFRAABRMBBEARTY ZHMH
BE - EREZFETERTFIMERRE &
EVRERKBABIEHHE -

AREMzBEENRBEAGEMEZTEZ
BR HIRFUBHRRELBUERL YRAZ
BERBE - BRI RERERLME A - 3K
PAEXEMEMATRERARERNS ML
ZEEMRE -

BERzER
AGBMNERREEGHMREEM 2L
RAETER T - ERRELEARESAE
RRMBHREAMBLBELRNEZTRAEBA LR
& MBRFEESRREZSHBRREME
ZERGFRAE  FRAZETBRREER
n BBk ERRZABBRARETERK
ALEARBEZEG AR -

ARHMERS RETERTER  JIUAR
BREAZEMA/LAZEMRERERAR
EAGHMEESENRE RASUBERERR
CREEXERRAFHAEZHEE - £FLE
RE - AZEMTEOEXSTHBERRMEEHR
EERLRTRN - ARHMEE  AREMZ
ERIHFERTIERRHEAE CER -
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FUNDAMENTAL UNCERTAINTIES IN RESPECT OF GOING
CONCERN

In forming our opinion, we have considered the adequacy of
the disclosures made in note 3 to the financial statements concerning
the adoption of the going concern basis for the preparation of the
financial statements. As explained in note 3 to the financial
statements, the Group sustained a net loss and operated under a
negative cash flow for the year. The Group also had net current
liabilities of HK$5,216,461 as at the balance sheet date.

Also explained in note 3 to the financial statements, the financial
statements have been prepared on a going concern basis, the validity
of which is dependent on the Group’s ability to return to normal
and profitable operational activity, the continuing financial support
from the Group’s lender and the successful conclusion to secure the
new source of funding. The financial statements do not include any
adjustments that might be necessary should the future operations
could not generate adequate working capital and/ or the financial
support mentioned above would be withdrawn. We consider that
appropriate disclosures have been made and our opinion is not
qualified in this respect.

OPINION

In our opinion the financial statements give a true and fair
view of the state of affairs of the Group and of the Company as at
31 March 2005 and of the loss and cash flows of the Group for the
year then ended and have been properly prepared in accordance
with the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance.

HLB Hodgson Impey Cheng
Chartered Accountants
Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong, 30 June, 2005

New CHINESE MEDICINE HOLDINGS LIMITED %7 8 % 2= |k & R 2 A
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CONSOLIDATED INCOME STATEMENT % & # # %

For the year ended 31 March, 2005 HE-ZTTRF=A=+—-BItFE

2005 2004
—EERE —ETNF
Notes HKS$ HK$
ik B BT
Turnover EEH 5 8,011,404 636,406
Cost of sales HEKA (8,191,058) (357,730)
Gross (loss)/ profit (B#R)/EF (179,654) 278,676
Other operating income Hin g A 5 4,799,087 1,815,781
Administrative expenses THRX (7,693,722) (8,398,175)
Allowances for doubtful debts REREE 6 (772) (3,601,792)
Allowances for inventory obsolescence BEFEEE - (4,709,165)
Other operating expenses Hin &% - (9,266,667)
Loss from operations KEER 7 (3,075,061) |  (23,881,342)
Finance costs B ER 8 (350,599) (749)
Loss from ordinary activities before taxation RS EERER (3,425,660) |  (23,882,091)
Income tax FEH 10 - (5,166)
Loss after taxation BREeER (3,425,660) |  (23,887,257)
Minority interest SEREER 4,900 =
Loss attributable to shareholders IR (G B8 11 (3,420,760) (23,887,257)
Loss per share BRE#R 12
- Basic —-EK (0.73) centsi& 4l |(5.09) centsys Il
- Diluted o 3 12 N/ATE N/AT 8

All of the Group's operations are classed as continuing. AEBIMEEBREDRFEKENE -
The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial M DBZEMBmE ARG -
statements.

o8 = R AR 23 New CHINESE MepiciNE HOLDINGS LIMITED
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES INEQUITY G2 B % 2 B %

For the year ended 31 March, 2005 HE-ZZTRG=A=+—HILFE

Share Share Special Exchange Accumulated
capital premium reserve reserve losses Total
Rx  RHEE  REARE ELGE RitER @it
HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$
BT BT BT BT BT BT
As at 1 April, 2003 RZ2E=FNA—H 46,900,000 19,008,723 (39,998,440) 102,802  (15,899,218) 10,113,867
Exchange differences BREEFEIN
arising on translation HEEEEHK
of financial statements PAIE
of operations outside FEECERES
Hong Kong not recognised MABEGRRBREA
in the consolidated S
income statement - - - 238,517 - 238,517
Net loss for the year EEEBRRE - = = - (23,887,257) (23,887,257)
As at 31 March, 2004 EA_NM A=1-H
and 1 April, 2004 RZZTNFENA—H 46,900,000 19,008,723 (39,998,440) 341,319  (39,786,475) (13,534,873)
Adjustments arising from H B R A
the Capital Reduction 2 HE
(Note 22(i) (Kti£22(7) (42,210,000) - - - 42,210,000 -
Exchange differences BREEFEIN
arising on translation HEEEEHK
of financial statements PAE
of operations outside FEECERES
Hong Kong not recognised MABEGRBREA
in the consolidated B
income statement - - - (145,360) - (145,360)
Net loss for the year EEBBRRE - = = - (3,420,760) (3,420,760)
As at 31 March, 2005 R-ZBEE=F=1+-H 4,690,000 19,008,723 (39,998,440) 195,959 (997,235) (17,100,993)

The special reserve of the Group represents the difference between

the nominal value of the shares of the acquired subsidiaries and the

nominal value of the Company’s shares issued for the acquisition at

the time of the Group Reorganisation prior to the listing of the

Company’s shares in 2002.

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial

statements.

New CHINESE MEepicINE HoLDINGS LIMITED %7 &
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CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET # & EE & & &

As at 31 March, 2005 —ZZHR&=A=+—H

2005 2004
“EERE —EENE
Notes HKS$ HK$
f & BT BT
Non-current assets F¥RBEE
Property, plant and equipment Mm% - BE KRR 13 266,615 332,816
Technical know-how 4 A 3 14 - =
266,615 332,816
Current assets REBEE
Inventories FE 16 762,313 =
Deposits and prepayments "e REMNHE 18 522,717 1,612,461
Amounts due from directors EWEERA 17 - 34,615
Tax recoverable ] U B 7% 38 - 329,160
Cash and bank balances BeRBFIER 216,340 214,627
1,501,370 2,190,863
Less: Current liabilities B ORBAE
Other creditors and accrued charges EfEMEERESER 6,680,873 7,431,925
Amounts due to directors ERNEERA 17 36,540 2,016,513
Amounts due to related companies B BE A RRA 19 - 261,930
Tax payable FERHiIE 418 5,166
Bank overdrafts RITEY - 43,018
6,717,831 9,758,552
Net current liabilities RBEEFE (5,216,461) (7,567,689)
Total assets less current liabilities BEERRBER (4,949,846) (7,234,873)
Less: Non-current liabilities B ERBAE
Long-term borrowings REEER 21 12,151,147 6,300,000
Net liabilities 8EFE (17,100,993) | (13,534,873)
Representing: & :
Share capital AR 22 4,690,000 46,900,000
Reserves & 24 (21,790,993) |  (60,434,873)
Shareholders’ equity RRER (17,100,993) |  (13,534,873)

The financial statements on pages 17 to 59 were approved and
authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 30 June, 2005 and

signed on its behalf by:

Kam Yiu Ming, Wilfred

HEB
Director

EF

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial

statements.

FIVTAEZEIAZHBHRREE RN
A=ZTHEESeHfERKERT

EREEZE
Leung Oi Wah
REE
Director
EE

—ETREN
Wi TIHE

I £ 7 8 2K S5 B 75 98 2 AR D -

o8 = R AR 23 New CHINESE MepiciNE HOLDINGS LIMITED
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BALANCE SHEET £ E & & &

As at 31 March, 2005 R=ZZTRE=A=+—H

2005 2004
“EERE —EENE
Notes HK$ HK$
f & BT BT
Non-current assets F¥RBEE
Investments in subsidiaries R B AR ZKE 15 5,100 =
Current assets REBEE
Deposits and prepayments Re REMNHE 18 140,063 1,308,501
Cash and bank balances BehSB&ER 3,438 3,438
143,501 1,311,939
Less: Current liabilities B ORBAE
Other creditors and accrued charges EfEMEBEREFTER 812,619 1,378,553
Amount due to subsidiary JE T 2 R 3008 15 5,100 =
Amounts due to directors ENEERA 17 25,500 75,500
843,219 1,454,053
Net current liabilities RBEEFE (699,718) (142,114)
Total assets less current liabilities BEERRDER (694,618) (142,114)
Less: Non-current liabilities B ERBAE
Long-term borrowings REEE 21 12,151,147 6,300,000
Net liabilities 8EFE (12,845,765) (6,442,114)
Representing: % :
Share capital AR 22 4,690,000 46,900,000
Reserves [ 24 (17,535,765) | (53,342,114)
Shareholders’ equity RRER (12,845,765) (6,442,114)

FITRERSIACHBHRRALER _FFTRFR
AZTHEESEHERKERT LA TIE

The financial statements on pages 17 to 59 were approved and
authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 30 June, 2005 and

signed on its behalf by: ERREZF
Kam Yiu Ming, Wilfred Leung Oi Wah
Hige REE
Director Director
EF EE

MEDBZER B I|MER 2 AR -

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial
statements.

New CHINESE MEeDICINE HOLDINGS LIMITED % % % # it & B 2 7
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CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT A6 R & R & &

For the year ended 31 March, 2005 HE-ZTTRF=A=+—-BItFE

2005 2004
—EEHRE | —ZTTNF
HK$ HK$
BTt BT
Cash flows from operating activities REEBCHERE
Loss from operations REBE (3,075,061) | (23,881,342)
Adjustments for: Bt N3 EERE
Share of losses by minority interest PERREREGEE 4,900 -
Interest income A (4) (11)
Depreciation of property, plant ME - BEREE
and equipment 2 E 274,056 377,744
Amortisation of technical know-how i &0 58 2 g - 9,266,667
Loss on disposals on property, plant HEME  HEKX
and equipment FiE 2 EE - 2,443
Impairment loss on property, plant ME - BEREE
and equipment ZRMERE 74,597 -
Allowances for doubtful debts I REME 772 3,601,792
Allowances for inventory obsolescence BT ERE - 4,709,165
Operating loss before changes in LEESEEA
working capital IS A (2,720,740) | (5,923,542)
Changes in working capital: LEESE
Inventories BE (762,313) 47,098
Deposits and prepayments e RN RIE 1,088,972 (714,273)
Amounts due from directors JEWE = FHIE 34,615 60,464
Other creditors and accrued charges Hitp S ERIEREGER (751,052) 562,344
Amounts due to directors BN EERA (1,979,973) 1,415,872
Amounts due to related companies JE 1 BF 38 A Bl FUA (261,930) 23,864
Net cash used in operations RIS REIN & R (5,352,421) (4,528,173)
Interest paid EFE (350,599) (749)
Income tax refunded ERENEH 329,160 -
Income tax paid RENEEES (4,748) (3,848)
Net cash used in operating activities REXEAERSTE (5,378,608) (4,532,770)
Cash flows from investing activities RETHZ2HERE
Purchase of property, plant and equipment BEWE BENXK (282,452) (1,290)
Interest received B F 8 4 11
Net cash used in investing activities RETEHMERSFE (282,448) (1,279)

o8 = R AR 23 New CHINESE MepiciNE HOLDINGS LIMITED
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CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT & & # € &

For the year ended 31 March, 2005 HE-ZZTRG=A=+—HILFE

B %

2005 2004
—EERE| —TTWEF
HK$ HK$
BT BT
Cash flows from financing activities MEZD2HRERE
New long-term borrowings raised HERBEES 8,351,147 3,800,000
Repayment of long-term borrowings EERBAEE (2,500,000) -
Net cash generated from financing METEMEERS
activities FHE 5,851,147 3,800,000
Net increase/(decrease) in cash and HeRBEEEEYZ
cash equivalents B/RD)FE 190,091 (734,049)
Cash and cash equivalents at FOzReERRE
beginning of the year ZEY 171,609 667,141
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes EXRSFHE (145,360) 238,517
Cash and cash equivalents at end FRZBEERERE
of the year ZEY 216,340 171,609
Analysis of balances of cash and ReRESEEY
cash equivalents EEOW
Cash and bank balances RekR1THER 216,340 214,627
Bank overdrafts SBITEX - (43,018)
216,340 171,609
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GENERAL

The Company was incorporated in the Cayman Islands as an
exempted company with limited liability under the Companies
Law Cap. 22 (Law 3 of 1961 as consolidated and revised) of
the Cayman Islands.

The Company acts as an investment holding company. Details
of the principal activities and other particulars of its subsidiaries
are set out in note 29 to the financial statements.

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared using
the merger basis of accounting at the time of the Group
Reorganisation prior to the listing of the Company’s shares in
2002. Under this basis, the Company has been treated as the
holding company of all subsidiaries for the financial years
presented and the Group has been regarded as a continuing
entity.

IMPACT OF RECENTLY ISSUED HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS

The Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
("HKICPA") has issued a number of new and revised Hong
Kong Financial Reporting Standards and Hong Kong Accounting
Standards (the “new HKFRSs”), which are effective for
accounting periods beginning on or after 1 January, 2005. The
Group has not early adopted these new HKFRSs in the financial
statements for the year ended 31 March, 2005. The new HKFRSs
may result in changes in the future as to how the Group’s
financial performance and financial position are prepared and
presented.

BASIS OF PRESENTATION AND FUNDAMENTAL
UNCERTAINTIES

The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (which also include
Statements of Standard Accounting Practice and Interpretations)
issued by the HKICPA, accounting principles generally accepted
in Hong Kong, and the disclosure requirements of the Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance and the applicable disclosure
provisions of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on
Growth Enterprise Market (the “GEM") of The Stock Exchange
of Hong Kong Limited (the “GEM Listing Rules”). The financial
statements have been prepared under the historical cost
convention.

1.

For the year ended 31 March, 2005 EE-ZZRE=A=+—HIFE
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For the year ended 31 March, 2005 HZ-ZZAF=A=+—-BILFE

3. BASIS OF PRESENTATION AND FUNDAMENTAL
UNCERTAINTIES (continued)
The Group sustained a consolidated net loss from ordinary
activities attributable to shareholders of HK$3,420,760 for the
year ended 31 March 2005 and had consolidated net current
liabilities of HK$5,216,461 and consolidated net liabilities of
HK$17,100,993 as at 31 March 2005. During the year ended
31 March 2005 and subsequently, the directors have taken active
measures to improve the liquidity and financial position of the
Group. The directors have prepared the financial statements on
a going concern basis, having regard to the following:

(a) During the year, the Company extended a loan agreement
with an independent third party to extend the total limit
of a loan to be advanced to the Company from
HK$10,000,000 to HK$15,000,000 and also extend the
repayment date to 30 June 2006. The loan was principally
granted for providing working capital to the Group. As at
31 March 2005, the draw-down by the Group amounted
to approximately HK$10.6 million. The loan and interest
thereon would be due for repayment in full by 30 June
2006. The directors of the Company believed that such
arrangement would relieve the Group’s liquidity difficulty.

(b) On 27 May 2005, the Company entered into a subscription
agreement with a subscriber which is an independent third
party. Subject to the passing of the ordinary resolutions at
an extraordinary general meeting to be held on 6 July 2005
to approve the share consolidation (please refer to note 22
for details of the share consolidation) and the subscription
agreement, the Company will allot and issue 450,000,000
shares to the subscriber upon the completion of the share
consolidation, at a subscription price of HK$0.04 per
subscription share. The net proceeds of the subscription of
shares amounted to approximately HK$17,000,000 would
be used principally as the general working capital of the
Group or for making future investments.

The directors are of the view that the above measures will
enable the Group to continue as a going concern and that
the Group will have sufficient working capital for the
foreseeable future. Accordingly, the directors are satisfied
that it is appropriate to prepare the financial statements
on a going concern basis. However, if these measures were
not to be successful or insufficient, or if the going concern
basis were not to be appropriate, adjustments would have
to be made to the financial statements to restate the value
of the Group’s assets to their recoverable amounts, to
provide for any further liabilities which might arise and to
reclassify non-current assets and liabilities as current assets
and liabilities, respectively.
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For the year ended 31 March, 2005 HE-ZZTRG=A=+—HILFE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(a)

(b)

(c)

(d)

(e)

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the
financial statements of the Company and its subsidiaries
for the year ended made up to 31 March, 2005.

The results of subsidiaries acquired or disposed of during
the year are included in the consolidated income statement
from the effective date of acquisition or up to the effective
date of disposal, as appropriate.

All significant inter-company transactions and balances
within the Group have been eliminated on consolidation.

Investments in subsidiaries
Investments in subsidiaries are included in the Company’s
balance sheet at cost less any identified impairment loss.

Turnover
Turnover represents the net amounts received and receivable
for goods sold during the year.

Revenue recognition
Sales of goods are recognised when the goods are delivered
and title has passed.

Interest income from bank deposits is accrued on a time
basis by reference to the principal outstanding and at the
interest rate applicable.

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost less
accumulated depreciation, amortisation and any identified
impairment loss.

Depreciation and amortisation are provided to write off
the cost of property, plant and equipment over their
estimated useful lives and after taking into account their
estimated residual value, where appropriate, using the
straight-line method, at the following rates per annum:

Leasehold improvements Over the shorter

of the term
of the lease,
or 5 years
Computer equipment and system 30%
Furniture, fixture and equipment 20%
Motor vehicles 30%
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For the year ended 31 March, 2005 HZ-ZZAF=A=+—-BILFE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(e)

()

(9)

(h)

(i

Property, plant and equipment (continued)

The gain or loss arising on the disposal or retirement of an
asset is determined as the difference between the sale
proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and is
recognised in the income statement.

Technical know-how

Technical know-how represents the medicine related
technical know-how acquired. Technical know-how is stated
at cost less accumulated amortisation and any identified
impairment loss. Amortisation is provided to write off the
cost over its estimated useful life of three years on a
straight-line basis.

Medicine research and development expenditure
Expenditure incurred on medicine research activities is
recognised as an expense in the year in which it is incurred.

An internally-generated intangible assets arising from the
Group's medicine development expenditure is recognised
only if it is anticipated that the development costs incurred
on a clearly-defined project will be recovered through future
commercial activity. The resultant asset is amortised on a
straight-line basis over its estimated economic useful life.

Where no internally-generated intangible asset can be
recognised, development expenditure is recognised as an
expense in the year in which it is incurred.

Website development costs

Expenditure incurred in the development of new website
and enhancement of existing website, including expenditure
incurred in the development and enhancement of contents,
is recognised as an expense in the year in which it is
incurred.

Segment reporting

A segment is a distinguishable component of the Group
that is engaged either in providing products or services
(business segments), or in providing products or services
within a particular economic environment (geographical
segments), which is subject to risks and rewards that are
different from those of other segments.
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For the year ended 31 March, 2005 HE-ZZTRG=A=+—HILFE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(i

@

(k)

Segment reporting (continued)

In accordance with the Group’s internal financing reporting,
the Group has chosen business segment information as
the primary reporting format and geographical segment
information as the secondary reporting format.

Segment revenue, expenses, results, assets and liabilities
include items directly attributable to a segment as well as
those that can be allocated on a reasonable basis to that
segment.

Segment capital expenditure is the total cost incurred during
the period to acquire segment assets (both tangible and
intangible) that are expected to be used for more than one
period.

Impairment

At each balance sheet date, the Group reviews the carrying
amounts of its tangible and intangible assets to determine
whether there is any indication that these assets have
suffered an impairment loss. If the recoverable amount of
an asset is estimated to be less than its carrying amount,
the carrying amount of the asset is reduced to its
recoverable amount. Impairment losses are recognised as
an expense immediately.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the
carrying amount of the asset is increased to the revised
estimate of its recoverable amount, but so that the
increased carrying amount does not exceed the carrying
amount that would have been determined had no
impairment loss been recognised for the asset in prior years.
A reversal of an impairment loss is recognised as income
immediately.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable
value. Cost, which comprise all costs of purchase, is
calculated using the first-in, first out method. Net realisable
value represents the estimated selling price in the ordinary
course of the business less the estimated costs necessary
to make the sale.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
(I) Foreign currencies

Transactions in currencies other than Hong Kong dollar are
translated into Hong Kong dollars at the rates ruling on
the dates of the transactions. Monetary assets and liabilities
denominated in currencies other than Hong Kong dollar
are re-translated into Hong Kong dollars at the rates ruling
on the balance sheet date. Gains and losses arising on
exchange are dealt with in the income statement.

On consolidation, the assets and liabilities of the Group's
operations outside Hong Kong are translated into Hong
Kong dollars at the rates ruling on the balance sheet date.
Income and expense items are translated at the same rates.
All exchange differences arising on consolidation are
classified as equity and transferred to exchange reserve.
Such translation differences are recognised as income or as
expenses in the period in which the operation is disposed
of.

(m) Income tax

Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently
payable and deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the
period. Taxable profit differs from net profit as reported in
the income statement because it excludes items of income
or expense that are taxable or deductible in other periods
and it further excludes items that are never taxable or
deductible. The Group's liability for current tax is calculated
using tax rates that have been enacted or substantively
enacted by the balance sheet date.

Deferred tax is the tax expected to be payable or recoverable
on differences between the carrying amount of assets and
liabilities in the financial statements and the corresponding
tax bases used in the computation of taxable profit, and is
accounted for in full, using the liability method. Deferred
tax liabilities are generally recognised for all taxable
temporary differences, and deferred tax assets are
recognised to the extent that it is probable that taxable
profits will be available against which deductible temporary
differences can be utilised.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at
each balance sheet date and reduced to the extent that it
is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be
available to allow all or part of the asset to be recovered.
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For the year ended 31 March, 2005 HE-TTRF=A=+—-BIFE
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For the year ended 31 March, 2005 HE-ZZTRG=A=+—HILFE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
(m) Income tax (continued)

(n)

(o)

(p)

(q)

Deferred tax is calculated at the tax rates that are expected
to apply in the period when the liability is settled or the
asset is realised. Deferred tax is charged or credited to the
income statement, except when it relates to items charged
or credited directly to equity, in which case the deferred
tax is also dealt with in equity.

Operating leases

Leases where substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership remains with the lessors are accounted for as
operating leases.

Rentals payable under operating leases are charged to the
income statement on a straight-line basis over the relevant
lease terms.

Retirement benefits scheme
Payments to the Group’s Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme
are charged as expenses as they fall due.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at bank and on
hand, demand deposits and short-term, highly liquid
investments that are readily convertible to known amounts
of cash and which are subject to an insignificant risk of
changes in value.

Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present
legal or constructive obligation as a result of past events
and it is probable that an outflow of resources will be
required to settle the obligation, and a reliable estimate
can be made of the amount of the obligation. Provisions
are reviewed at each balance sheet date and adjusted to
reflect the current best estimate. Where the effect of the
time value of money is material, the amount of a provision
is the present value of the expenditures expected to be
required to settle the obligation.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
(r) Contingent liabilities and contingent assets

A contingent liability is a possible obligation that arises
from past events and whose existence will be confirmed
only by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more
uncertain future events not wholly within the control of
the Group. It can also be a present obligation arising from
past events that is not recognised because it is not probable
that outflow of economic resources will be required or the
amount of obligation cannot be measured reliably. A
contingent liability is not recognised but is disclosed in the
notes to the financial statements. When a change in the
probability of an outflow occurs so that outflow is probable,
a provision is recognised.

A contingent asset is a possible asset that arises from past
events and whose existence will be confirmed only by the
occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain
future events not wholly within the control of the Group.
A contingent asset is not recognised but is disclosed in the
notes to the financial statements when an inflow of
economic benefits is probable. When inflow is virtually
certain, an asset is recognised.
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5. TURNOVER, REVENUE, OTHER OPERATING INCOME 5, BX¥ - Wam HUKEWARSBE
AND SEGMENT INFORMATION #
Revenue recognised during the year are as follows: FABRZBHMT :
2005 2004
—2E2RF | _TTWEF
HK$ HK$
BT BT
Turnover: HEE
Retail sale TEHE 8,011,404 581,535
E-commerce sale ETEHEHEE - 54,871
8,011,404 636,406
Other operating income: H BN
Interest earned on bank deposits RITERAE 4 11
Written back of creditors JEfTBR X 2 B[O - 1,279,090
Foreign exchange gain, net HVEE e OF 58) 72,121 658
Service income PR A 268,397 533,530
Sub-lease rental income (Note) SRS WA () 1,047,881 =
Recovery of bad debts previously 1 I8 2% Al 2 4 88
written off ZZIR 2,500,000 -
Other income H e A 910,684 2,492
4,799,087 1,815,781
Note:  The aggregate future minimum lease payments receivable under ftat : REER  AEEHBTAHBELLREN
non-cancellable operating leases as at the balance sheet date ZARREDOABBRBASEEMT ¢
are as follows:
Group
N |
2005 2004
—gesg | -TIOF
HKS$ HK$
B BT
Within one year —FR 108,871 900,000
In the second to fifth years inclusive E_FEELF(OFEERMSF) - 108,871
108,871 1,008,871
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For the year ended 31 March, 2005 HE-TTRF=A=+—-BIFE

5.

New CHINESE MEepicINE HoLDINGS LIMITED %7 &

ZEZRAERRXA

TURNOVER, REVENUE, OTHER OPERATING INCOME 5, BXE - WE - HKEW ARSI HE
AND SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) B (&)
Business segments EBoH
During the year ended 31 March 2004, the principal activities REZEZZENF=A=1+—HILFE &
of the Group are sale of Chinese medicine through retail and E- £ E IZIK%%%@%@ ERETHEHE
Commerce divisions. During the year ended 31 March 2005, REZE - AHRE_ZTET fﬁ$ H +—HB1E
two new business segments had arisen, namely retail sale of FEHAMERELD B - RiRRE &
healthcare/ skincare products and digital electronic products. B 2 m A R 2 S E@%F‘DDZ ﬁﬁ’i A
For internal financial reporting purposes, management had HHBERGHAEMNE AEEJ"EE&@E‘ ey
changed certain segment reporting presentations. The major BImEZZINAN o EEMERERA M E
change was combining two similar segments, Chinese medicine MRS (FBERRRE EEER)AM
and healthcare/ skincare products into one category namely R— KAIMREEMRIHE - ARAEER
"healthcare products”. Comparative figures have not been BE_STWNF=-A=1T-"BLFEANTE
restated as the Group had no sale of healthcare and skincare HERBREBEEMURBEBEFER - ¥
products and digital electronic products during the year ended WESINELRET o I REBEE_ZTZH
31 March 2004. In addition, during the year ended 31 March FZA-T—BLEFER AEELEER
2005, the Group did not conduct any sale through its E- EFREDHETEMBEE o
Commerce division.
During the year ended 31 March 2005, there were no sales or REE-ZZERF="A=T—HILFERN "
other transactions between the business segments. Segment EBoH oMU BEREEIEMR S - &
information about these businesses is presented below. BMZEEBZOBERZINMAT -
Year ended 31 March, 2005 BE_ZTEAFE=-HA=1+—HIFE
Digital
Healthcare electronic Total
products products Retail E-Commerce Consolidated
REER BBETEM TELE EfHE &e
HKS HKS HKS HKS HKS$
B B B B B
REVENUE I 35
External sales HIMHE 1,453,072 6,558,332 8,011,404 - 8,011,404
Inter-segment sales DEHE - - - - =
Total revenue Al 1,453,072 6,558,332 8,011,404 - 8,011,404
RESULT ES |
Segment loss NEEE (255,023) - (255,023)
Unallocated corporate AP ERE
income and expenses WA TR % (2,820,038)
Loss from operations LEEE (3,075,061)
Finance costs BKER (350,599)
Loss from ordinary REER
activities before taxation BAlEE (3,425,660)
Income tax ﬂ i -
Minority interest DY RS 4,900
Net loss for the year FEBBRFE (3,420,760)
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For the year ended 31 March, 2005 HE-ZZTRG=A=+—HILFE

TURNOVER, REVENUE, OTHER OPERATING INCOME 5, E¥EXE Wz  HK2W AR HE
AND SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) # ()
Business segments (continued) EXDI (F)

As at 31 March, 2005 R-_EERF=A=+—H

BALANCE SHEET BEEERER
Digital
Healthcare electronic Total
products products Retail E-Commerce Consolidated
REER BBEFER TEAH ETHE &
HKS HK$ HK$ HK$ HKS$
BT BT BT BT BT
ASSETS &
Segment assets PHEE 212,447 549,866 762,313 762,313
Unallocated corporate assets KA BEEEE 1,005,672
Consolidated total assets LAREE 1,767,985
LIABILITIES 8f
Segment liabilities 2HERE -
Unallocated corporate APEREAR
liabilities 18,868,978
Consolidated total liabilities LABAR 18,868,978
OTHER INFORMATION HitEH
Unallocated
Retail E-Commerce corporate  Consolidated
2E ETHE AABMELE &e
HKS HKS HKS HKS$
BT BT BT BT
Additions to property, plant RENZE WE
and equipment Ri& 282,452 - - 282,452
Depreciation of property, % BER
plant and equipment R HTE 274,056 - - 274,056
Amortisation of technical SRl v
know-how 3 - - - -
Allowances for doubtful debts AEREE 772 - = 772
Allowances for inventory BRTFEERE
obsolescence - - - -
Impairment loss on property, 0% BEREZHE
plant and equipment WEEE 74,597 - - 74,597

Loss on disposals of property,
plant and equipment

HENE  BER
R ER

Eii

= KA B A A New CHINESE MEDICINE HoLDINGS LiMITED
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5. TURNOVER, REVENUE, OTHER OPERATING INCOME

AND SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)

Business segments (continued)

Year ended 31 March, 2004

EXRE hiE HUKEWARSHE
# (&)

XBDE (H)
HE_TENF=A=+—HIFE

Retail E-Commerce Elimination Consolidated
Z2E ETHE I 85 onEe
HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$
BT BT BT & T
REVENUE Iy &=
External sales HHNEE 581,535 54,871 - 636,406
Inter-segment sales 7 b $HE 3,242 = (3,242) =
Total revenue B 584,777 54,871 (3,242) 636,406
RESULT |
Segment loss 7 &b & B (4,912,597)  (2,051,590) (6,964,187)
Unallocated corporate RAOBRE
income and expenses 53 (16,917,155)
Loss from operations KB EE (23,881,342)
Finance costs BB R (749)
Loss from ordinary BREH
activities before taxation i Al & 18 (23,882,091)
Income tax MEH (5,166)
Net loss for the year FEBE

New CHINESE MEeDICINE HOLDINGS LIMITED % % % # it & B 2 7
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5. TURNOVER, REVENUE, OTHER OPERATING INCOME

AND SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)
Business segments (continued)
As at 31 March, 2004

5, XM WsE - HteEE

# (&)

XBDE (H)

R-FEMF=A=+—A

BARDEHE

BALANCE SHEET BEEBEX
Retail E-Commerce Consolidated
=€ ETHE =RE
HK$ HK$ HK$
& T & T & T
ASSETS &
Segment assets DEE BE 321,546 121,158 442,704
Unallocated corporate assets KOBEGCEEE 2,080,975
Consolidated total assets AWM EE 2,523,679
LIABILITIES ==
Segment liabilities DA fE 2,264,225 - 2,264,225
Unallocated corporate liabilities AN k=K 13,794,327
Consolidated total liabilities RARAR 16,058,552
OTHER INFORMATION Ht &R
Unallocated
Retail E-Commerce corporate Consolidated
Z2E EFHE KB oEe
HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$
& T BT BT BT
Additions to property, plant REWE  KE
and equipment &L 1,290 = = 1,290
Depreciation of property, ME  BEREZE
plant and equipment I E 239,261 138,483 - 377,744
Amortisation of technical B &0 2
know-how i - - 9,266,667 9,266,667
Allowances for doubtful debts 53 8k % & 300,000 - 3,301,792 3,601,792
Allowances for inventory BEFERE
obsolescence 659,165 - 4,050,000 4,709,165
Loss on disposals of property, HEWZE « BE X
plant and equipment FiEZEE - - 2,443 2,443

Eii

= KA B A A New CHINESE MEDICINE HoLDINGS LiMITED
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For the year ended 31 March, 2005 BZE-Z2THF=A=+—-HIFE

5. TURNOVER, REVENUE, OTHER OPERATING INCOME 5, EXH WsE HGEWARIHE
AND SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) ('
Geographical segments Zitt & 5 5
No geographical segment information is presented as over 90% HRANEEEBBIORHEEEL %45 &
of the Group’s sales operations, results, assets and liabilities are ERBEDREES  HUEZIRHES
derived from Hong Kong. BER o
6. ALLOWANCES FOR DOUBTFUL DEBTS 6. REREE
2005 2004
“EERRF | —ZT@EHF
HK$ HK$
BT BT

Allowances for doubtful debts comprise: RZHRBEESFEATZE :

Deposits paid to supplier/ consultant (note) &4 F #fEw R 2184 (M) - 2,536,500
Deposits paid to travel agencies ERTFREREZES - 300,000
Others Hfth 772 765,292

772 3,601,792

Note:  During the year ended 31 March, 2004, the balance of deposit fit: REBZEZ-_TTNF=A=1+—HILFE
to a consultant for procuring new businesses remained NTERRERTEBE RSN _STNE
outstanding as at 31 March, 2004. The directors of the ZA=+T—HNERKE ARAREZRA
Company considered that the allowances for doubtful debts RZZETEHF=A=+—BFRREERE
provided as at 31 March, 2004 were adequate but not BRAMTRAS -
excessive.

NEew CHINESE MEDICINE HOLDINGS LIMITED %7 8 % = |k & R 2 A
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For the year ended 31 March, 2005 EE-ZZRE=A=+—HIFE

LOSS FROM OPERATIONS 7. REER
2005 2004
—EERE | —TTWEF
HK$ HK$
BT BT
Loss from operations has been arrived REBBEE R
at after charging: VZE-S:
Amortisation of technical 905 S0 3 2 B 4
know-how (note i) (B 3%i)
(included in other operating expenses) (Bat AEMEER %) - 9,266,667
Auditors’ remuneration % 2R B
- Current —XEE 250,000 160,000
— Underprovision in prior year —EERETRE - 25,288
Depreciation of property, ME - BER
plant and equipment REZHE 274,056 377,744
Loss on disposals on property, HEWE  HER
plant and equipment FiE 2 EE - 2,443
Impairment loss on property, ME - BMEREHEZ
plant and equipment WEBE 74,597 -
Operating lease rentals in respect of MEWMEZKRERNTES
rented premises 1,176,000 1,054,601
Staff costs (note ii): B TRA (Bfatii)
Directors’ emoluments (note 9) E=Me (FF9) 568,800 1,601,226
Other staff costs Hi 8 TRA
— salaries and other allowances — T % At RE 486,044 2,014,416
— retirement benefit scheme contribution — — 3B /K48 7| 5 & 4 3% 27,502 51,655
Notes: fitat -
(i)  During the year ended 31 March 2004, amortisation was provided () REEZTTNF=A=+—HIEFE B%

to write off the cost of medicine related technical know-how over
its estimated useful life of three years on a straight-line basis. The
annual provision amounted to HK$4,633,333. Upon reviewing the
current market conditions and the low business volume arising
therefrom, the directors of the Company, accounted for the
impairment of such asset by providing additional amortisation
thereon amounting to HK$4,633,334, making the total sum
charged in the consolidated income statement for the year ended
31 March 2004 to HK$9,266,667.

Staff costs disclosed above included total retirement benefit scheme
contribution of HK$44,302 (2004: HK$63,575).

Eii

MRRBAT AR AR A A EAFH=F U
BERABY §EEER4,633,3338 L &
ZREETER ARSI BEELERE - A2
RIEE B HEFEEMN4,633,3348 7w * tEA
ZERERERE  REZE-TTNF=A=
T+ BALFEREBERITAERMER
9,266,667 7T ©

EXFTEE B TRAR B RIREFTEER
443027 T (ZEZME : 63,5758 70) ;T B
|3q o

= KA B A A New CHINESE MEDICINE HoLDINGS LiMITED
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8. FINANCE COSTS 8. MKER
2005 2004
—EZEF | ZZT@EF
HK$ HK$
BTt BT
Interest on: T EEZHE
Bank overdrafts and other borrowings BARAFABHEEL

wholly repayable within five years RITEFRBEL 350,599 749

9. DIRECTORS’ AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT'S 9. EBKEREEEZHE

REMUNERATION
(a) Directors’ remuneration

Details of directors’ remuneration disclosed pursuant to

the requirements of the GEM Listing

Rules and Section

161 of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance are as follows:

a. EEME

RIFBIZ R EMAR R REL AR RAIS
BIGEZRAERBCESHEF BT

T

Number of directors

EZAY
2005 2004
—geEfF | —TIMF
Executive directors WITES 5 6
Independent non-executive directors BV IFHITES 4 3
9 9

The aggregate amounts of emoluments payable to the

directors during the year are as follows:

FRAERMEEIMZzMESLBNOT :

2005 2004

—EE2REFE | _ETWF

HK$ HK$

BT 78 JT

Fees ik - =

Other emoluments: Hin &

Basic salaries, housing allowances, EXRFE  BEER
other allowances and retirement H R B KR IREF

benefit contributions &t & it 5K 568,800 1,601,226

568,800 1,601,226

New CHINESE MEepicINE HoLDINGS LIMITED %7 &
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9. DIRECTORS’ AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT'S 9. EEREREEE2ME (&)
REMUNERATION (continued)
(a) Directors’ remuneration (continued)

(a) EEME (&)

The emoluments of each of the directors of the Company
were within the band of nil to HK$1,000,000. No
emoluments were paid to the directors of the Company as
an inducement to join or upon joining the Group or as
compensation for loss of office.

During the year ended 31 March, 2005, amongst the five
executive directors, one executive director received
individual emoluments (including retirement benefit
contribution) of approximately HK$468,000 (2004: Nil). The
remaining four executive directors agreed to waive their
emoluments during the year ended 31 March, 2005. During
the year ended 31 March, 2004, three executive directors
received individual emoluments (including retirement benefit
contribution) of approximately HK$492,000, HK$660,000
and HK$349,226. The remaining three executive directors
did not receive any emoluments during the year ended 31
March, 2004.

During the year ended 31 March, 2005, amongst the four
independent non-executive directors, two independent non-
executive directors received individual emoluments
(including retirement benefit contribution) of approximately
HK$50,400 (2004: Nil) and HK$50,400 (2004: Nil). There
was an independent non-executive director, whose director’s
emolument was HK$100,000, resigned during the year
ended 31 March, 2004.

FEEZEZRAERA

RRBIEEZS2H< N TZ 21,000,000
B o W R AR R E ST [
e EAREMBAEESIR MBERZ
PEUERBEREEE -

RN TESF —EHTEERBES
EERFE A=+t HLFEKRRZE
A e (BERKAEBANEEMRT) A5
468,000 (ZZTWE : &) - lr—4
WITEEN  ERNERITESHRE
FWEBE—_TTAF=A=1+—HLHF
EZzMe #HE—ZTTWF=R=+—
BEFE =572 WBEAHNS
(B 53R IR 18 R 5T 21 i 3%) £9492,0007%
JC * 660,000/ 7T % 349,226/ 7T © H &
CRHOTESVENDREBE_TTNF
“B=t-BLFEZ#H: -

REBEE-_ZEZRF=A=1+—HILtFE
MEBYFRNTEZTERMEBIERTE
EUE 2 @ AB € (B IER KR FET 4
) B AE50,4008 L (ZETWE : ) R

w4m%xt_77mi T) o HEZ
ZTNE=A=+—HULEEERNE— 4
BIYIFRHTEEHT HEEME A
100,000/ T °

A 7 New CHINESE MEDICINE HoLDINGS LiMITED
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9. DIRECTORS’ AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT'S

REMUNERATION (continued)

(b) Five highest paid individual
The five individuals whose emoluments were the highest in
the Group for the year included three (2004: three) directors
and their emoluments are reflected in the analysis presented
above. The emoluments payable to the remaining two
(2004: two) individuals during the year are as follows:

9. EEREREEEZME (&)

(b) EEBEFAL
ENAEELARESHEMEEBETES
£ (—BEME =R AEE BEY
e IR EX - ERERESBTSG (=
TENE : ME)BESNZMEMT

2005 2004
—EERE —ETNF
HK$ HK$
BT BT

Basic salaries, housing allowances EXHFE  RBEER
and other allowances =R ih=3: 195,493 372,574
Retirement benefit contributions RIRAR I FT 2 3R 9,790 10,868
205,283 383,442

No emoluments were paid by the Group to the respective
five highest paid individuals, including directors, as an
inducement to join or upon joining the Group or as
compensation for loss of office.

10. INCOME TAX
The amount of taxation charged to consolidated income
statement represents:

AEEYEARARSHFAL(BRES)XHN
EAME  FARSNEAKEIRNNER
ZACHEREREE

10. KI5 B
GABERAMBZRESBENT

2005 2004
—EERE | —ZTTWF
HK$ HK$
BT BT

Company and subsidiaries ERRRKERQR
Hong Kong profits tax BEMNEH - =
Income tax in other jurisdiction HirZER 2SR - 5,166
- 5,166

New CHINESE MEeDICINE HOLDINGS LIMITED % % % # it & B 2 7
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INCOME TAX (continued) 10. FEH (&)
The following is a reconciliation of income taxes calculated at RERANEABEZNEHENGHAX 2 4
the applicable tax rate with income tax expenses: RanE
2005 2004
iy 3 3 e U3
HK$ HK$
BT BT
Loss from ordinary activities before taxation  Br % Al 4% &% % 75 & 18 (3,425,660) | (23,882,091)
Income tax calculated at applicable tax rate  ZERR X E 2 715 (599,491) (4,184,532)
Net tax effect of non-taxable items FRMBE 2 RBREFE 599,491 4,189,698
Income tax charge FEB = H - 5,166

No provision for Hong Kong profits tax has been made in the
financial statements as the Group has no assessable profit arising
in Hong Kong for the year (2004: Nil).

Income tax arising in other jurisdiction is calculated at the rates
prevailing in the relevant jurisdictions.

Details of unprovided deferred tax are set out in the note 20 to
the financial statements.

LOSS ATTRIBUTABLE TO SHARHOLDERS

The loss attributable to shareholders includes a loss of
$6,403,651 (2004: $18,572,921) which has been dealt with in
the financial statements of the Company.

LOSS PER SHARE

The calculation of loss per share is based on the loss attributable
to shareholders of $3,420,760 (2004: $23,887,257) and the
weighted average number of 469,000,000 ordinary shares (2004:
469,000,000 ordinary shares) in issue during the year.

No diluted loss per share for each of the years ended 31 March
2004 and 31 March 2005 have been presented as the share
options outstanding had an anti-dilutive effect on the respective
basic loss per share for the years ended 31 March 2004 and 31
March 2005.

11.

12.

AR AE B F N E RS I RBUR N
Iﬂﬁf\ﬁﬁ%#&i‘%qﬂﬁﬁﬁxﬁﬂ SHELBEE (=

Htb A X EBR e HANEARIZEER
BIIREHE -

ABBEEHBZFBIR
20 -

B R PEL 518
Hﬁ%ﬁéﬁﬁ@ﬂé@%e,4o3ﬁ51%xngm
F :18,572,92187T) ZEE  EBAKRA
2B ERPEE

BEREE

TR E 18 T0 AR 15 F AR SR FE 1 E5183,420,760
BT (ZZEZTME : 23,887,25787T) REZH
1738 2 0 15 £0469,000,0004% i 1%
(ZZTPN4 : 469,000,0000% L @A) st & -

1 7% R M i

AREAITEZBREHBE_TTNF=
A=+—-HR-ZETAF=A=1+—HLF
EZ8BRERERDAREFTYE - Eﬁ(jtﬂ
2INBE_TEMF=-_A=1t—BR=
AF=A=T-HLEFEEF2EH T%ﬁ,iféﬁ
8

o8 = R AR 23 New CHINESE MepiciNE HOLDINGS LIMITED
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13. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

13. 9%  BERRE

Computer Furniture,
Leasehold equipment fixture and Motor
improvements and system equipment vehicles Total
ERRE BH%EE
BEXE RE#® ST RE By
HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$
BT BT BT BT BT
THE GROUP ARE
At cost: A
As at 1 April, 2004 RZZZNENA—A 532,861 867,866 103,468 100,331 1,604,526
Additions NE 203,000 19,368 60,084 - 282,452
As at 31 March, 2005 RZEERE=A=1—-H 735,861 887,234 163,552 100,331 1,886,978
Accumulated depreciation RitTER
and amortisation: B
As at 1 April, 2004 RZZZWENA—A 420,933 702,148 48,298 100,331 1,271,710
Charge for the year EREEB 143,878 70,127 60,051 - 274,056
Impairment loss HERE 2,249 60,160 12,188 - 74,597
As at 31 March, 2005 RZEERE=A=1—-H 567,060 832,435 120,537 100,331 1,620,363
Net book value: REFE
As at 31 March, 2005 R=BBLE=A=1-H 168,801 54,799 43,015 - 266,615
As at 31 March, 2004 RZZEME=A=1-H 111,928 165,718 55,170 - 332,816
14. TECHNICAL KNOW-HOW 14. B g 5 &
HK$
BT
THE GROUP KEFH
At cost: B
As at 1 April, 2004 and E"_? qﬂiﬂﬂ B &
as at 31 March, 2005 —EZRF=A=1+—H 13,900,000
Accumulated amortisation: ?“Hﬁﬁﬁ' :
As at 1 April, 2004 and _?_\,EEEH A&
as at 31 March, 2005 R-ZETAF=A=+—H 13,900,000
Net book value: BREFE
As at 31 March, 2005 R-ZZEF=A=+—H -
As at 31 March, 2004 R-EZEMNF=HA=+—H -

New CHINESE MEepicINE HoLDINGS LIMITED % % % # i 5 R 2
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INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES 15. REB AR 2 RE
THE COMPANY
P /N
2005 2004
—EERF | ZTTWEF
HK$ HK$
BT BT
Unlisted shares, at cost ELmRD (KAE) 40,005,100 | 40,000,000
Less: Impairment loss " R EBE (40,000,000) | (40,000,000)
5,100 -
The allowance for impairment loss in respect of the costs of EFHRMBARFEMRNAAZBEBELR
unlisted shares of subsidiaries is based on the deficiency of the ENBEASER_ZSTENER_TTHEF
investment costs over the recoverable amount of the relevant “A=t+—HEGEBNEQE R KRERE
subsidiaries attributable to the Group as at 31 March, 2004 BREERAR 2 BAMEtE -
and 2005.
Particulars of the Company’s subsidiaries as at 31 March, 2005 ARAIMBRARAIR-_EZRF=HAH=1+—"H
are set out in note 29 to the financial statements. ZEBEHNM B RRMFE29 o
The amount due is unsecured, interest free and repayable on FHEREREER 2ERARNREREE
demand. 2 o
INVENTORIES 16. #&
THE GROUP
rEE
2005 2004
—EERF | ZTTWEF
HK$ HK$
BT BT
Raw materials R - 4,507,686
Finished goods 24PX o 762,313 201,479
762,313 4,709,165
Less: Allowances for obsolescence B BT B R E - (4,709,165)
Total inventories, net of provision FEER (HKRERE) 762,313 -
The cost of inventories recognised as an expense amounted to FERZAS 1910588 L (ZFE WM F :
$8,191,058 (2004: HK$121,768). 121,7688 1) HERIER X °

o8 = R AR 23 New CHINESE MepiciNE HOLDINGS LIMITED
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17. AMOUNTS DUE FROM/ (TO) DIRECTORS
Particulars of the amounts due are as follows:

17. B/ () EERE
Ao/ (R EEFEZFBOT -

THE GROUP
AEE
Maximum
amount
Balance Balance due from
as at as at the directors
31 March, 1 April, during
2005 2004 the year
R-ZZEZRF R-ZTZENF RAFE
=A=+—H MA—H ERESHRE
- k- ZEEHER
HK$ HK$ HK$
BT BT BT
Ms. Leung Oi Wah REELL (36,540) (902,321) -
Ms. Leung Oi Wah REELL - 34,615 34,615
Ms. Wan Choi Ha mEEZ T = (50,000) -
Mr. Junya Kabeya BEA B, 5% & - (158,400) =
Mr. Lau Ka Ho ARTRE - (52,600) -
Mr. Wong Cheah Foo BEBEE - (853,192) -
(36,540) (1,981,898) 34,615
Represented by: DMMTE
Amounts due from directors JEWE = FHIE = 34,615
Amounts due to directors JENESEFHIE (36,540) (2,016,513)
THE COMPANY
PN
Maximum
amount
Balance Balance due from
as at as at the directors
31 March, 1 April, during
2005 2004 the year
R-ZEZEEF R-ZTENF RAFE
=A=+—H MAE—H ERESEHRE
- - ZEEHER
HK$ HK$ HK$
BT BT BT
Ms. Leung Oi Wah REELL (25,500) (25,500) -
Ms. Wan Choi Ha mEEZ T = (50,000) -
(25,500) (75,500) -

The amounts due are unsecured, interest free and repayable on

demand.

New CHINESE MEeDICINE HOLDINGS LIMITED % % % # it & B 2 7
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18. DEPOSITS AND PREPAYMENTS 18. BE RFEMNRIE
THE GROUP THE COMPANY
rEE PN
2005 2004 2005 2004
“BEIF | —TIMF | -BBIFE | “FEEF
HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$
BT AT BT AT

Prepayment and deposits BRRIERIEZS

— prepayments — B FIA 188,981 - 140,063 10,126

~ deposits (note i) —&e (i) 299,000 439,000 - -

Others (note ij) Hopth, (fff 2tii) 35,508 4,775,253 - 1,298,375

Less: Allowances for W REBEREE

doubtful debts (772) (3,601,792) - -
522,717 1,612,461 140,063 1,308,501

Notes: [t et -

(i) Deposits were paid to business agents for introducing strategic () ReDAEERBIMN  UEAXSENBR
partners and/ or customers to the Group. BUEBHER/REP -

(i) During the year ended 31 March, 2004, others included an amount (il REBEZTTNF=A=+—HIEFE ' Hft
of HK$2,536,500 deposit paid to a consultancy company for REBFEAREEN AR £ R —FERA
procuring new businesses to the Group. No such deposit was paid A% f1,22,536,5008 ik - BE-TTH
during the year ended 31 March, 2005. FZA=T—BULFENLTESINIEERS -

19. AMOUNTS DUE TO RELATED COMPANIES 19. BN BERX KA

The amounts due are unsecured, interest free and have no ENRBLEEERE  REREETENRDY -

fixed repayment terms.

20. UNPROVIDED DEFERRED TAX 20. RIBHELHE

As at the balance sheet date, the major components of REER  RBERBETHRELE/ (AR 2

unrecognised deferred tax asset/ (liability) are as follows: EZHHMT

THE GROUP
rEH
2005 2004
—EERFE | —TTNFE
HK$ HK$
BT BT
Tax effect of temporary difference GRREEMEENBTE
because of: ZRA -
Shortfall/ (excess) of tax allowances EHELR,/ (BB)
over depreciation e 92,389 (23,315)
Tax losses HIAE R 2,982,741 3,171,771
3,075,130 | 3,148,456

o8 = R AR 23 New CHINESE MepiciNE HOLDINGS LIMITED
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20. UNPROVIDED DEFERRED TAX (continued)

The amount of unprovided deferred tax credit/ (charge) of the

20. ABBELEHR A (&)

AEERFEARBBECH AL R (L)

Group for the year are as follows: SEOAT
2005 2004
—ETRE —ZEWF
HK$ HK$
BT 78 JT

Shortfall of tax allowances EHBORITE

over depreciation 116,635 32,330
Tax losses (utilised)/ arising (BBR) /FFEAZHEESE (309,825) 948,570
(193,190) 980,900

The Group and the Company did not have any significant
unprovided deferred tax as at the balance sheet date (2004:

Nil).

21. LONG-TERM BORROWINGS

REEH  AEEERQFYE A ERRE
BRERBE(CTTNSF - &)

21. REIEE

THE GROUP AND THE COMPANY

TEBREAT
2005 2004
—EERF | —TTWF
HK$ HK$
BTt BT
The loan is unsecured and will not be BERAEEARETSH
demanded for repayment within FEREGTZHEAN
twelve months from the balance EREER :
sheet date:
— interest bearing at 5.25% per annum — B8 (85.25%)
(note) (it 7t) 10,613,312 3,800,000
— interest free - %8 1,537,835 2,500,000
12,151,147 6,300,000
Note: As at 31 March, 2005, the loan is due for repayment on 30 ftit - RZZETRF=RA=+T—H BEREARZ
June, 2006. ZTRERA=ZTHEE

New CHINESE MEeDICINE HOLDINGS LIMITED % % % # it & B 2 7
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22. SHARE CAPITAL 22. |
Number of shares Amount
BRGEAE B
HK$
BT
Authorised: EE
Ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each BREBOVETL (ZZZME :
(2004: HK$0.1 each) BR01BTT) 2 & B
As at 31 March, 2003 and R-ZBE=F=A=+—-HEK
1 April, 2004 —ZENENA—H 2,000,000,000 200,000,000
Capital Reduction (note i) BBk B A (B 7D - (180,000,000)
Capital Reorganisation (note ii) BAEMA (fF:Fii) 18,000,000,000 180,000,000
As at 31 March, 2005 R-ZBERFE=H=1+—H 20,000,000,000 200,000,000
Issued and fully paid: ERITRME
Ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each BREB.OVETL (ZZZME :
(2004: HK$0.1 each) BR01BTT) 2 & B
As at 31 March, 2003 and R-ZBE=F=A=+—-HEK
1 April, 2004 —ZENENA—H 469,000,000 46,900,000
Capital Reduction (note i) R IR AN (ff 71i) - (42,210,000)
As at 31 March, 2005 R-ZBERFE=HA=1+—H 469,000,000 4,690,000

Changes in share capital

Pu
of
10

(i)

(ii)

rsuant to the special resolution passed by the shareholders
the Company at an extraordinary general meeting held on
May, 2004, it was resolved that:

The nominal value of all each of the then issued shares of
the Company was reduced by HK$0.09 from HK$0.1 each
to HK$0.01 (the “Capital Reduction”). The credit in the
sum of HK$42,210,000 arising from the Capital Reduction
was credited to set off against the accumulated losses of
the Company, with the balance credited to the special
reserve of the Company as permitted by the laws of Cayman
Islands and the Company’s Bye-laws; and

Immediately upon completion of the Capital Reduction, all
of the then authorised but unissued shares including the
authorised but unissued shares arising from the Capital
Reduction will be cancelled and the authorised share capital
of the Company will immediately thereafter be increased
by the subsequent creation of such number of new shares
of HK$0.01 each as shall be sufficient to increase the
authorised share capital to HK$200,000,000 divided into
20,000,000,000 shares (the “Capital Reorganisation”).

BRA%E
BEARRAKRRNR-_TZTMFRA T HET

ZBEEHAE LRBZBIRER
R

(i)

(ii)

+4 2.

24 %

ARBERE2PERTRNMERZAEE
0.1/ 7L B 38 0.097% 7T £0.0175 7T ([ 4l
AR AS]) o BRI AR E &£ 242,210,000
BLERDANEEARR ZRAE
B BRHULRESHEEIREAREZ
NI - N WA /NI v = K
%R

REVBR AT E - AR A E 2%
TEKRETRG  BREBERAEEZ
ETEBERETRMDE TS MARQA]
ZETERANEREANMN EHEER B
EE.ONB TG - BEFMKRHOBR
LA {5 Bl % & B ZK 38 = 200,000,000/% 7T
(% £20,000,000,0000% A& 17 )([ B 4~ &
A1) o
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23. SHARE OPTION
The Company has the following share option schemes:

(i) Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme

On 1 February, 2002, the Company adopted a share option
scheme (the “Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme”).

The purpose of the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme is to
provide incentives to recognise the contribution of certain
directors, employees and advisor of the Company to the
growth of the Group and/ or to the listing of the Company’s
shares on the Growth Enterprise Market of The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (“GEM"). The period within
which the shares must be taken up under an option of the
Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme shall be valid for a period of
3 years commencing on 1 February, 2002. Save for the
legal advisor, the grantees have to hold one-third of the
options granted for a period of six months after listing,
another one-third for a period of twelve months after listing
and the remaining one-third for a period of twenty four
months after listing. HK$1 is payable on acceptance of an
option within 28 days from the date of grant.

The total number of shares in respect of which options
granted under the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme was
25,500,000 shares. The exercise price for shares under Pre-
IPO Share Option Scheme was 50% of the issued price
when the shares of the Company were offered to the public.

No option has been exercised up to the expiry of the Pre-
IPO Share Option Scheme in February 2005. Details of the
movement in share options granted on 18 February, 2002
under the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme during each of the
two years ended 31 March, 2005 are set out as follows:

New CHINESE MEeDICINE HOLDINGS LIMITED % % % # it & B 2 7
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RERESTE
RRREATREREE
() BRABEBRAREREE
MNZEE_F-F—H ARA@HEMH—
[

z
BERBRESS (ERLRARAAE
1)

BRARAKRAABRETE CANE
ERGHASEERE /R ARAR
NHEEBHERZMBERAAERR
(TEIZR)) LWEBEERMZETES £
BRER - BRAFRBRARBRER
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mEFR) - SR T1B3REE_THEA
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23. SHARE OPTION (continued) 23. RBRETE (F)
(i) Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme (continued) () BXRLHBRAIZERESSE (8)
For the year ended 31 March, 2005 REZ_FEFRF=A=1T—HIFE
Number of share options
BREXE
Outstanding Lapsed Outstanding
Exercisable Exercise price as at during as at
period per share 1 April, 2004 the year 31 March, 2005
R-2EME R-Z2BLE
Bk mA-A AEE ZA=t-8
TERE TEE WRETE XA W RETE
HKS
-y

Category: Directors
Bl EF September 7, 2002 - February 17, 2005 0.3 3,000,000 (3,000,000) -
ZEE_FENAALBEERRE_AT+A

March 7, 2003 - February 17, 2005 0.3 3,000,000 (3,000,000) =
—ZZ-A-RtRE_TTRF_ATLHA

March 7, 2004 - February 17, 2005 03 3,000,000 (3,000,000) -
“EERE-ALAE-TTRRF-ATLA

9,000,000 (9,000,000) =

Category: Employees
il g8 September 7, 2002 - February 17, 2005 03 - - -
ZEECENALBESERRE-AT LA

March 7, 2003 - February 17, 2005 03 - - =
—ZZ-A-AtBE_ZEERF_AT+A

March 7, 2004 - February 17, 2005 03 - - =
—ZIME-AtAE_TTRF_AT LA

Category: Legal advisor
Bh :EEER March 7, 2002 - February 17, 2005 03 2,400,000 (2,400,000) -
“EE-4-ftHE-ETRF-_AtLA

2,400,000 (2,400,000) =

Total all categories
2EER 5 11,400,000 (11,400,000) =

o8 = R AR 23 New CHINESE MepiciNE HOLDINGS LIMITED
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23. SHARE OPTION (continued)

(i) Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme (continued)

For the year ended 31 March, 2004

0 WD\,%H’I%—l-iJ (/IE)
() BRLHABRAZBRESS (H)
—EEMEZ A+ AR

Number of share options

BREXE
Outstanding Lapsed Outstanding
Exercisable Exercise price as at during as at
period per share 1 April, 2003 the year 31 March, 2004
R-BR=F R-ZZ2NEF
Bk mA-H AEE ZR=1-H
TERE TEE WRETE XA W RETE
HK$
BT
Category: Directors
LI September 7, 2002 - February 17, 2005 03 3,000,000 - 3,000,000
ZEE_FENAALBEERRE_AT+A
March 7, 2003 - February 17, 2005 03 3,000,000 - 3,000,000
—ZZ-A-AtBE_ZETRF_AT+A
March 7, 2004 - February 17, 2005 03 3,000,000 - 3,000,000
—ZENE-A+tRE_EERF_AT++A
9,000,000 - 9,000,000
Category: Employees
Bhl: BB September 7, 2002 - February 7, 2005 03 2,400,000 (2,400,000) -
ZEE_FENALRE_ERRE_AT+A
March 7, 2003 - February 17, 2005 03 2,400,000 (2,400,000) -
—ZZ-A-AtBE_ZEERF_AT+A
March 7, 2004 - February 17, 2005 03 2,400,000 (2,400,000) -
—ZENE-A+tRE_EERF_AT++A
7,200,000 (7,200,000) -
Category: Legal advisor
Bh :EEER March 7, 2002 - February 17, 2005 03 2,400,000 - 2,400,000
ZEECG-AtBETTRRE-ATLA
2,400,000 - 2,400,000
Total all categories
LRERE 18,600,000 (7,200,000) 11,400,000

New CHINESE MEepicINE HoLDINGS LIMITED %7 &
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23. SHARE OPTION (continued) 23. RERESE (F)
(ii) Share Option Scheme (i) REBRETE

On 1 February, 2002, another share option scheme (the
“Share Option Scheme”) was approved pursuant to a
resolution of the shareholders of the Company.

The purpose of the Share Option Scheme is to enable the
Company to grant options to selected individuals to
subscribe for shares in the Company as incentives or rewards
for their contributions to the Group. The Board may, at its
discretion, invite any full-time or part-time employee of
the Company or any member of the Group, including any
director of any member of the Group and any advisor or
consultant (in areas of technical, financial or corporate
managerial) of the Company or any of its subsidiaries to
take up options to subscribe for the shares in the Company
for a consideration of HK$1 each lot of share option
granted. The Share Option Scheme will remain valid for a
period of 10 years commencing on 1 February, 2002. The
option period shall not be less than 3 years and not exceed
10 years from the date of acceptance of option. There is
no minimum period for which an option must be held
before it can be exercised. HK$1 is payable on acceptable
of an option within 28 days from the date of grant.

The total number of shares in respect of which options
may be granted under the Share Option Scheme must not
in aggregate exceed 46,900,000 shares, which represent
10% of the shares in issue as at 7 March, 2002, being the
date of listing of the Company’s shares on GEM, unless
approval from the Company’s shareholders has been
obtained. The total number of shares issued and to be
issued upon exercise of the options granted and to be
granted to each individual in any twelve-month period up
to and including the date of grant shall not exceed 1% of
the shares in issue at the date of grant unless approval
from Company’s shareholders has been obtained.

Options may be exercised at any time during the specified
option period. The exercise price shall be determined by
the directors of the Company, and shall be at least the
highest of (i) the closing price of the Company’s shares as
stated on GEM's daily quotation sheets on the date of
grant; (ii) the average closing price of the Company’s shares
for the five business days immediately preceding the date
of grant and (iii) the nominal value of the Company’s shares.

RZZZ_F_F—H ARARER
AR BRFRZER 2 HERA— R
BT 8l o

REREEZBENEEEARA AR
RABATIRERBEREZRBARAMK
- ERHNEAAKEMELHNER
ZEBROH EZTEARNBRAFAR
AR AKBEAKERRZEMNZRK
#BEE (BERAREEMAKE QR ZE
FEE) kAR RS EERAMNERRER
it PHAECEEERRE ZEFMEAA
FERE  BRRBREARERRFR
- MERBEBREIALBRENE
ROREREMNETAE - BEHE
AEBA—TE_F_A—HEFTF
ABEXN - REREIRESIOR=F -
MmABEBREMNRERER DL+
Fo-RBREEA TIRZMERARTS
RAOHRE o MEARBERE - AIAREK
HEHEF T ABXMUET -

BrIEEAR AR E - AIE AR EIR
BERARBRARERE ST
Z 0% 15 48 &1 A §A 8 46,900,0000% ¢ 1
AARBRHNR_EZT_F=FtHEE
EREMEBZEHEITRAI10% - M
BAMALTELRERER  MEHER
HASHA+ A/ SREANEEA (215
EHAHA)  2EREEBETREZR
BREETFSETEALRRANZE
HABHZEBETRAZ1% @ BRIFEAD
AR E  BATSRERBRET
ZEBAL -

REREIREERIDRERERRT
£ ARABRDCERKAESTEE
E MR TI=Ez&E : (VAREMK
DRELRERERBRAZRE B &
BRARZEHE : (DD EEES
AER A ENRLQE 2 FHRHE - Rii)
AREIRGEE
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23. SHARE OPTION (continued)
(ii) Share Option Scheme (continued)
No share options have been granted by the Company under
the Share Option Scheme since its adoption.

The overall limit on the number of shares which may be
issued upon exercise of all outstanding options granted
and yet to be exercised under the Pre-IPO Share Option
Scheme, the Share Option Scheme and any other schemes
involving the issue or grant of options must not exceed
30% of the Company’s shares in issue from time to time.

23. RERESE (&)
(i) RERETE (&)

BARRRARBBRETENRKRER
R R AE -

REERARBRARERETSS R
FERRE ST & R F R BT R SRR R
R E AT SR R A EITE A
AHABRTERABRERETERA T3
TZBROHALLERRETSBEARA
THEHETRH30% °

24. RESERVES 24. &tk
Share Special Exchange  Accumulated
premium reserve reserve losses Total
Rt EE BHREE B X RitER )
HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$
BT BT BT BT BT
The Group F5E
As at 1 April, 2003 “Z2Z=-FNA-A 19,008,723 (39,998,440) 102,802 (15,899,218) (36,786,133)
Exchange differences REEFBN MR
arising on translation BasBz U KRR
of financial statements FEECERES
of operations outside MAREGR BR K
Hong Kong not recognised AR
in the consolidated
income statement - - 238,517 - 238,517
Net loss for the year EEEBRRE - = = (23,887,257)  (23,887,257)
As at 31 March, 2004 “EENFE=R=1+—H
and 1 April, 2004 RZZZNENA—A 19,008,723 (39,998,440) 341,319 (39,786,475) (60,434,873)
Adjustments arising from HRRAEE 2
the Capital Reduction HE
(note 22(i)) (Hiz£22() - - - 42,210,000 42,210,000
Exchange differences REEFBN MR
arising on translation BesBzUBaR
of financial statements FEECERES
of operations outside MAREGR BR K
Hong Kong not recognised AR
in the consolidated
income statement - - (145,360) - (145,360)
Net loss for the year EEBBRRE - = = (3,420,760) (3,420,760)
As at 31 March, 2005 “EERE=fA=1-H 19,008,723 (39,998,440) 195,959 (997,235) (21,790,993)
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24. RESERVES (continued) 24. %16 (&

Share Accumulated
premium losses Total
IR 43 )% B Rt B8 At
HK$ HK$ HK$
BT BT BT
The Company b NN
As at 1 April, 2003 —2TE=F=ZA=+—H 19,008,723 (53,777,916)  (34,769,193)
Net loss for the year FEERFHE - (18,572,921) (18,572,921)
As at 31 March, 2004 and —EEMFE=RA=+—H
1 April, 2004 RZZZMEMA—H 19,008,723 (72,350,837)  (53,342,114)
Adjustments arising from the Capital B % 2% 5| i 58 2
Reduction (note 22(i)) (Htaz22()) - 42,210,000 42,210,000
Net loss for the year FEERFHE = (6,403,651)  (6,403,651)
As at 31 March, 2005 —ZTRF=ZA=+—H 19,008,723 (36,544,488)  (17,535,765)

The Company’s reserves available for distribution include the
share premium and accumulated losses. Under the Companies
Law (Revised) Chapter 22 of the Cayman Islands (the
“Companies Law"), the share premium of the Company is
available for paying distributions or dividends to shareholders
subject to the provisions of its Memorandum or Articles of
Association and provided that immediately following the
distribution or dividend the Company is able to pay its debts as
they fall due in the ordinary course of business. In accordance
with the Company’s Articles of Association, dividends may be
declared and paid out of the profits of the Company, realised
or unrealised, or from any reserve set aside from profits which
the directors determine is no longer needed. With the sanction
of an ordinary resolution dividends may also be declared and
paid out of share premium account or any other fund or account
which can be authorised for this purpose in accordance with
the Companies Law.

In the opinion of the directors, as at 31 March, 2005, the
Company does not have any reserves available for distribution
(2004: Nil).

AR R A 2 et e B B 0 (B e Rt ) (/85
B)  RERSHEAEFENERAXE (KE
81 (IRADE]) - R AR A7 4 B 7 A A SR 3
RS MEE - BB TARREEEER
NREAA - BRAERRRNERE D KX
fiRE#%& - MBERNEENEEXRBERET
BB ES - DAL RIABRE - 1R
BAARAKER  BERAKARAEE
RERBRGNINENEREEZART
BREEZEMNFERETFRETIREN - W
BEBRZRANRAET - KRBT A RN
BRI DANEREAFIL AR 2 EMEMLE
TERBPRET RIS °

EERLE R-_EZERE=A=1+—H ' K
ARAEEAED R EMFEE (CTTOEF
&)
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25.

26.

OPERATING LEASE COMMITMENT

As at the balance sheet date, the Group had commitment for
future minimum lease payments under non-cancellable operating
lease which fall due as follows:

25 BEMNERE

REER  AKERBEIAHELEHROZ
ARZLEHEEAEMT :

THE GROUP

KEH
2005 2004
—ETRE —2EWF
HK$ HK$
BT 78 JT
Within one year —FR 202,415 980,000
In the second to fifth years inclusive E_FRERF - 929,946
202,415 1,909,946

RETIREMENT BENEFIT SCHEME

The Group operates a Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme (the
“MPF Scheme”) for all employees. The MPF Scheme is registered
with the Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme Authority under
the Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance. The assets
of the MPF Scheme are held separately from those of the Group
in funds under the control of an independent trustee. Under
the rule of the MPF Scheme, the employer and its employees
are each required to make contributions to the scheme at rates
specified in the rules. The only obligation of the Group with
respect of the MPF Scheme is to make the required contributions
under the scheme.

The retirement benefits cost charged to the income statement
represents contributions payable to the MPF scheme by the
Group at rates specified in the rules of the scheme.

As at the balance sheet date, there was no forfeited contribution
available to reduce future contributions (2004: Nil).
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27. LITIGATIONS

(a)

A writ of summons was filed by New Chinese Medicine
Limited, a subsidiary of the Company, and the Company,
as plaintiffs, against a company (“Defendant”) on 15
October, 2004 regarding, inter alia, a claim for breach of
the agreements entered into between the plaintiffs and
the Defendant in which the Defendant would provide
internet computer software design and set up for the
business operations of the plaintiffs. The plaintiffs are
claiming the refund of HK$1,100,000 as a result of breach
of contract and damages. The plaintiffs also sought an
interim order that the Defendant shall not pursue or
withhold pursuing any winding up proceedings against any
of the plaintiffs. The Defendant filed a defence on 9
December, 2004 and there is no further action taken since
the hearing of the summons for directors filed on 21
February, 2005 up to the balance sheet date. There has
not been any development since the filing of the defence
by the Defendant and the Group’s appointed legal advisor
on this litigation advised that the estimated liability arising
out of the contractual dispute amounted to approximately
HK$200,000 should counter-claim is filed by the Defendant.
There has not been any counter-claim filed by the Defendant
as at the balance sheet date and after taking into
consideration of the legal opinion issued by the Group's
appointed legal advisor on this litigation, the directors of
the Company consider that no material provision was
necessary.

A writ of summons was filed by two plaintiffs against,
among others, Wondergold Limited (“Wondergold”), a non-
major operating subsidiary of the Company as at the
balance sheet date, on 4 January, 2005 regarding, inter
alia, a claim for breach of an agreement by Wondergold
and other losses and damages (including but not limited to
the damages for breach of trust by Wondergold, damages
for detinue and/or conversion and the net proceeds for
sale of goods and the repayment of HK$1,500,000 which
was already repaid by Wondergold) alleged to be suffered
by the plaintiffs. The plaintiffs also sought an injunction
against Wondergold to restrain Wondergold from selling
or disposing of or in any way deal with the said goods.
The plaintiffs applied for summary judgments by summons
filed on 3 May, 2005. Upon the hearing of the summons
on 14 June, 2005, the case was adjourned for the plaintiffs
to file affirmation in reply. The legal advisor appointed by
Wondergold advised that the plaintiffs claim for loss and
damages arising out of the alleged unlawful detention of
goods is approximately HK$544,000 but Wondergold may
have to pay the costs of the action if judgement is obtained
by the plaintiff. As the other claims of the plaintiff are not
quantified, legal advisor of Wondergold is unable to
estimate the total claims and the related legal costs to be
incurred by Wondergold. Since the outcome of the litigation
could not be determined with reasonable certainty at this
stage, the directors of the Company considered that no
provision is necessary to be made in the financial
statements.

27. &R

(a)
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27. LITIGATIONS (continued)

() A number of writ of summons were filed by Brillant Wealth
Limited (“the Landlord”) against Wondergold from 18
September, 2004 up to 25 May, 2005 regarding, inter alia,
claim for breach of contract by Wondergold and
outstanding rental payment and other related costs of
approximately HK$1,500,000 in aggregate. The rental
agreement between Wondergold and the Landlord expired
in May 2005. As at 31 March, 2005, Wondergold has settled
rental amount of approximately HK$882,000 and the
outstanding rental payment between 1 January, 2005 and
31 March, 2005 as stated in the rental agreement of
approximately HK$294,000 has been provided for in the
financial statements for the year ended 31 March, 2005.
Since the outcome of the litigation could not be determined
with reasonable certainty at this stage and provision for
outstanding rental payment up to 31 March, 2005 has
been provided for in the financial statements, the directors
of the Company considered that no further provision is
necessary in the financial statements.

28. POST BALANCE SHEET EVENT
Pursuant to the Company’s announcement dated 30 May, 2005
and the circular issued by the Company on 20 June, 2005, the
capital reorganisation will become effective upon completion
of certain conditions as set out in the circular. An extraordinary
general meeting will be held on 6 July, 2005 to approve the
capital reorganisation which involved the following:

Share consolidation

(a) The Company proposed to consolidate every four issued
shares of HK$0.01 each of the Company into one new
share of HK$0.04 each (the “New Share”). Immediately
upon completion of the share consolidation, the authorised
share capital of the Company will remain to be
HK$200,000,000, comprising 5,000,000,000 New Shares
of HK$0.04 each, of which approximately 117,250,000 New
Shares will be in issue. The New Shares will rank pari passu
in all respects with the then existing shares of the Company.
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28. POST BALANCE SHEET EVENT (continued) 28. KEBREE (A)
Change in board lot size EXEFEHEEN
(b) The Company proposed to change the board lot size from (b) RAREZERNEHTKE  $E8F

4,000 shares to 20,000 New Shares upon completion of
the share consolidation such that the value of each board
lot will be increased from HK$120 (before the share
consolidation) to HK$2,400 (after the share consolidation)
based on the closing price of HK$0.03 per share as quoted
on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock
Exchange”) on 26 April, 2005, being the last trading day
prior to the date of the announcement.

Share subscription
(c) The Company entered into a subscription agreement on 27

May, 2005 with Excel Point Holdings Limited (the
“Subscriber”) which is wholly and beneficially owned by
Mr. Wong Chun Keung, and Mr. Wong Chun Keung (the
“Subscriber’'s Guarantor”), both are independent third
parties which were independent of and not connected with
the directors, chief executives or substantial shareholders
of the Company or any of its subsidiaries or any of their
respective associates (as defined in the GEM Listing Rules).

Pursuant to the subscription agreement, the Company will
allot and issue 450,000,000 New Shares of HK$0.04 each
to the Subscriber at a subscription price of HK$0.04 per
subscription share. The subscription price represented (i) a
discount of approximately 66.67% to the closing price of
HK$0.03 per share as quoted on the Stock Exchange on
26 April, 2005, being the last trading day in the shares on
the Stock Exchange prior to the publication of the
announcement; and (ii) a discount of approximately 66.67 %
to the average closing price of HK$0.03 per share as quoted
on the Stock Exchange over the last ten trading days up to
and including 26 April, 2005.

The net proceeds of approximately HK$17,000,000 to be
received by the Company upon completion of the share
subscription will be used as the general working capital of
the Group or for making future investments should there
be appropriate investment opportunity identified by the
Group.

BEE B 4,0008% 8% 17 2k A20,0008% 37
By - MEFFROBE(KREBHE
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A 1% 22,4008 T °
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Excel Point Holdings Limited ([FREEA | -
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Details of the above capital reorganisation were set out in the

circular dated 20 June, 2005. FEXNA-+THZBHK -
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29. PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES 29. B A A F1E
Particulars of the Company’s subsidiaries as at 31 March, 2005 RZBEZERF=A=1+—H ZAARZHE
are as follows: RAGFREET

Issued Proportion of nominal
Place of and fully value of issued
incorporation/  Class of paid up capital held
Name of subsidiary operation shares held capital by the Company  Principal activities
BET ERREE
R i % R 4 REE BETRE
i) PNCEE K <Pl BRBRE HEBD TEXK
Directly Indirectly
E#& A
% %
NCM Life Sciences Hong Kong Ordinary HK$10,000 - 100 Inactive
Technology Limited BH Tk 10,0005 1 EmeEs
NCM Shoji Co. Limited Japan Ordinary JYP10,000,000 - 70 Retailing of pharmaceutical
A TER 10,000,0008 products
TEREEM
New Chinese Medicine British Virgin Ordinary Us$200 100 = Investment holding
(BVI) Limited Islands TR 200E T REER
RERLES
New Chinese Medicine Hong Kong Ordinary HK$10,000 = 100 Investment holding and
Limited B TR 10,0008 7T distribution of
HEEFRAA pharmaceutical products
REERRDHBEEM
New Chinese Medicine Hong Kong Ordinary HK$10,000 = 100 Internet based medical
(HK) Limited B TR 10,0008 7T treatment and retailing
HRE(FE)ARAA of modern
Chinese medicines
NEMBRERL
BEERPKETE
New Chinese Medicine Hong Kong Ordinary HK$10,000 = 100 Inactive
International Limited BH Tk 10,0007 7T EmEs
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PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

29. B AR (&)

Issued Proportion of nominal
Place of and fully value of issued
incorporation/  Class of paid up capital held
Name of subsidiary operation shares held capital by the Company  Principal activities
BET ERREE
R Fi%s & 4 REE BETRE
i) PNCEE K <Pl BRRE [ERENER N TEXK
Directly Indirectly
E#& A
% %
New Chinese Medicine Commonwealth  Ordinary Us$1,000 - 100 Owner of the registered
(Website) Limited of the Tk 1,000% T domain name of
nRE(WE)ARAA Northern www.newchinesemedic.com
Mariana ez EREAA
Islands
LEESH
HEANE
Wondergold Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HK$10,000 = 100 Retailing of pharmaceutical
EEERAA BH Lk 10,0007 7T products
TEREEM

Harvest Rich Limited (Note) ~ Hong Kong Ordinary HK$10,000
HEBRRA (F) BB L@k 10,0005 7

Note: Harvest Rich Limited was newly incorporated during the year.

APPROVAL OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
The financial statements were approved and authorised for issue
by the Board of Directors on 30 June, 2005.

30.

- 51 Retailing of healthcare/
skincare and digital
electronics products

TERR EER
BBETEMD

T YRERAAREFENKILZAT °

1t B B 3 R R
PHEBREN-_TERAFAA=-THRES
SR R TIE
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Year ended 31 March,
BZ=A=1t—-HLEFE

2001 2002 2003 2004 2005
—ET—F ZTT-F —ZTT=F ZTTNE | ZTETILF
HKS HKS HKS HKS HK$
BT BT BT BT BT
Results E¥
Turnover =] 34,096,317 26,595,352 14,021,237 636,406 8,011,404
Profit (loss) before taxation i Al @ Al (E518) 6,217,705 2,424,505  (27,834,737) (23,882,091)| (3,425,660)
Taxation Fi1E (1,107,734) (269,766) (3,848) (5,166) -
Profit (loss) before minority K&t DB B A
interest i Il (5 18) 5,109,971 2,154,739  (27,838,585) (23,887,257)| (3,425,660)
Minority interest DY R R = = 191,850 = 4,900
Profit (loss) for the year REREREE
attributable i A (&5 18)
to shareholders 5,109,971 2,154,739 (27,646,735) (23,887,257)| (3,420,760)
At 31 March,
R=A=+—-~H
2001 2002 2003 2004 2005
—ET—4F ZTT-F —ZTT=F ZTTNE | ZTZILF
HKS HKS HKS HKS HK$
BT BT BT BT BT
Assets and liabilities BEREE
Total assets BEE 44,839,980 42,297,332 20,409,345 2,523,679 1,767,985
Total liabilities and minority @& E K
interest DEFRF B (26,660,921)  (4,053,282) (10,295,478) (16,058,552) | (18,868,978)
Net assets (liabilities) FEE(BE) 18,179,059 38,244,050 10,113,867  (13,534,873) | (17,100,993)
Note: ftat -

Pursuant to a group reorganisation to rationalise the structure of the
Company and its subsidiaries (hereinafter collectively referred to as the
“Group”) in preparation for the listing of the Company’s shares on the
Growth Enterprises Market (“GEM") of the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (the “Stock Exchange”), the Company became the holding company
of the Group on 6 August, 2001. The shares of the Company have been
listed on the GEM of the Stock Exchange with effect from 7 March, 2002.
The Group resulting from the group reorganisation is regarded as a continuing
entity. Accordingly, the financial statements of the Group have been prepared
on the merger accounting basis as if the Company had always been the
holding company of the Group. The results for the year ended 31 March,
2001 has been extracted from the Company’s prospectus dated 25 February,
2002.
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